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WHEREUPON, the f o l l o w i n g proceedings were had a t 

3:10 p.m.: 

CHAIRMAN LEMAY: Okay, we s h a l l reconvene, and 

c a l l Case Number 11,510, which i s the A p p l i c a t i o n of 

Branko, I n c . , e t a l . , t o reopen Case Number 10,656, Lea 

County, New Mexico. 

Appearances i n Case 11,510? 

MR. STRATTON: Mr. Chairman, Hal S t r a t t o n f o r 

Branko, e t a l . 

CHAIRMAN LEMAY: Thank you, Mr. S t r a t t o n . 

MR. KELLAHIN: Mr. Chairman, I'm Tom K e l l a h i n of 

the Santa Fe law f i r m of K e l l a h i n and K e l l a h i n , appearing 

on behalf of M i t c h e l l Energy Corporation. 

MR. CARROLL: May i t please the Commission, Rand 

C a r r o l l on behalf of the O i l Conservation D i v i s i o n . 

CHAIRMAN LEMAY: Thank you, Mr. C a r r o l l . 

How many witnesses w i l l you be pr e s e n t i n g or — I 

understood t h e r e w i l l be no witnesses? 

MR. KELLAHIN: We have a s u r p r i s e f o r you. There 

are no witnesses. 

MR. STRATTON: And no testimony. 

CHAIRMAN LEMAY: And no testimony. 

MR. STRATTON: And no argument, i f you d e s i r e , 

Mr. Chairman. 

CHAIRMAN LEMAY: I don't know why we're here, 
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gentlemen. We should be — 

Mr. Chairman, i f I might, I guess t h i s i s a de 

novo hearing, so I suppose — I don't know who you i n t e n d 

t o go f i r s t . 

CHAIRMAN LEMAY: Well, g e n e r a l l y the A p p l i c a n t ; 

i s n ' t t h a t true? 

MR. KELLAHIN: I'm the one stuck as the 

a p p e l l a n t , Mr. Chairman — 

CHAIRMAN LEMAY: Uh-huh. 

MR. KELLAHIN: — and, you know, I ' l l d e fer t o 

Mr. S t r a t t o n i f he would l i k e t o go f i r s t . I'm happy t o go 

f i r s t . 

CHAIRMAN LEMAY: You can work t h a t out, 

gentlemen, but we don't care as a Commission. 

MR. STRATTON: Why don't I go f i r s t , Mr. 

Chairman, since — 

CHAIRMAN LEMAY: Okay, t h a t would be f i n e . 

MR. STRATTON: — i t ' s our dfe novo and i t ' s 

t e c h n i c a l l y our motion t o reopen? 

What we've done i s , we have agreed and s t i p u l a t e d 

t h a t we would introduce e x h i b i t s and testimony from the 

previous two hearings i n t h i s case. 

And the f i r s t t h i n g — and I t h i n k Ms. Hebert may 

— Do you have these now? 

MS. HEBERT: We do have them. 
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MR. STRATTON: Okay. Can we use the o r i g i n a l s 

f o r the record, or do want us t o sub- — I've got others 

here t h a t we can use, but — 

MS. HEBERT: No, I t h i n k we can j u s t i n c o r p o r a t e 

the hearing below. We have the record here. 

MR. STRATTON: Okay. Well, l e t me — What I ' d 

l i k e t o do j u s t f o r purposes of the record i s t o make c l e a r 

what I understand i s i n the record. And Mr. K e l l a h i n , I'm 

sure, w i l l want t o do t h a t as w e l l . 

F i r s t of a l l , there's the January 21st, 1993, 

hearing t r a n s c r i p t on the M i t c h e l l a p p l i c a t i o n . 

Then t h e r e 1 s Strata's E x h i b i t s 1 through 7 t o 

t h a t p a r t i c u l a r hearing. 

Next, the t r a n s c r i p t of the testimony f o r the May 

2nd, 1996, hearing. That was our motion t o reopen. 

And then we have a c t u a l l y 44 e x h i b i t s from t h a t 

p a r t i c u l a r hearing t h a t we would l i k e t o submit, as w e l l as 

one a d d i t i o n a l l e t t e r , which would be E x h i b i t 45, which 

we've s t i p u l a t e d t o , f o r the record. And what we've agreed 

t o do here today, Mr. Chairman, i s t o submit a l l of t h i s on 

the record. 

Just so the Commission w i l l know, the E x h i b i t s 1 

through 16 are a f f i d a v i t s from our c l i e n t s — from my 

c l i e n t s , i n d i c a t i n g what they would t e s t i f y about t h e i r 

i n t e r e s t i n the property i n t h i s case. And we are 
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s t i p u l a t i n g t h a t t h a t would be t h e i r testimony. We're not 

s t i p u l a t i n g t h a t , c e r t a i n l y , the Commission i s bound by 

t h e i r conclusions. I t ' s t o what they own as — t h a t t h a t ' s 

what they would t e s t i f y t o i f they were here today, and 

th e r e are no hearsay exceptions t o t h a t testimony. 

And so those f o r the witnesses. We'd be 

t r a i p s i n g i n 16 witnesses here today i f we d i d n ' t do t h a t . 

So we've l i m i t e d down t h e i r testimony t o what's i n the 

e x h i b i t s , and I be l i e v e — I t ' s what I t h i n k i s r e l e v a n t 

and what I want the Commission t o have i n regard t o t h e i r 

testimony. 

And also, j u s t w h i l e I'm t a l k i n g about 

a f f i d a v i t s , a t the end of the l a s t hearing, the hearing 

o f f i c e r asked t h a t we submit more e x h i b i t s from those 

i n d i v i d u a l s regarding when they knew about the previous 

M i t c h e l l hearing and when they knew about M i t c h e l l ' s 

Tomahawk w e l l . And although t h a t ' s not something I would 

have submitted, I d i d i t i n deference t o the hearing 

o f f i c e r , because he thought i t was r e l e v a n t , and I don't 

t h i n k i t ' s r e l e v a n t , but we submitted them and the y ' r e i n t o 

evidence. 

So I guess I ' d l i k e t o f o r m a l l y move the 

admission of a l l those, and — w i t h the one oth e r , which 

would be E x h i b i t 45 here. 

CHAIRMAN LEMAY: For the b e n e f i t of my f e l l o w 
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Commissioners, d i d you want t o sum up the case i n any way 

or form? 

MR. STRATTON: Sure. 

CHAIRMAN LEMAY: I s t h a t going t o be a 

p r e s e n t a t i o n on your part? 

MR. STRATTON: That's what I'm going t o — 

CHAIRMAN LEMAY: Yeah, okay, t h a t ' s f i n e . I 

don't t h i n k Commissioner Weiss or Commissioner B a i l e y are 

f a m i l i a r w i t h the case i n any form or f a s h i o n . 

COMMISSIONER WEISS: I have no idea. 

CHAIRMAN LEMAY: Yeah. 

MR. STRATTON: Well, I came here expecting no one 

would be f a m i l i a r w i t h the case, but since we are on t h e 

reco r d , should there be an appeal, I wanted t o make sure 

t h a t a l l the e v i d e n t i a r y matters were taken care o f , since 

we don't have any witnesses or e x h i b i t s , Mr. Chairman. 

CHAIRMAN LEMAY: Right. 

MR. STRATTON: Unless — I t h i n k Mr. K e l l a h i n 

should — 

MR. KELLAHIN: I need t o ask Mr. S t r a t t o n a 

question. 

(Off the record) 

MR. KELLAHIN: A procedural matter, Mr. Chairman, 

t o complete the s u b m i t t a l f o r m a l l y of the e x h i b i t s . 

I t i s our i n t e n t i o n by what Mr. S t r a t t o n j u s t 
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requested, i s t h a t the t r a n s c r i p t of the o r i g i n a l f o r c e -

p o o l i n g hearing, back i n 1993, which includes a l l t h e 

M i t c h e l l e x h i b i t s — and they're i d e n t i f i e d i n the 

t r a n s c r i p t — a l l of those t h a t are i d e n t i f i e d i n t h e 

t r a n s c r i p t would be included before the Commission. 

I n a d d i t i o n , i n the hearing on May 2nd of 1996, 

the r e was a package of correspondence, was marked as 

M i t c h e l l E x h i b i t 1. We want t h a t e n t i r e t r a n s c r i p t and 

e x h i b i t s before you. 

I n a d d i t i o n , Mr. S t r a t t o n i s c o r r e c t , t h e r e were 

some supplemental a f f i d a v i t s t h a t Examiner Stogner 

requested. There was some d i f f e r e n c e among counsel about 

what was t o be contained i n those a f f i d a v i t s , but they were 

submitted, and I bel i e v e they should be — form p a r t of the 

record. 

I n a d d i t i o n , there was an exchange o f l e t t e r s 

between Mr. Cavin and I . Mr. S t r a t t o n has introduced one 

of the l e t t e r s . 

And the l a s t e x h i b i t , then, would be my M i t c h e l l 

E x h i b i t 2 t o Case 11,510, which was my response t o Mr. 

Cavin. I don't t h i n k i t ' s p a r t i c u l a r l y important f o r 

di s c u s s i o n t h i s afternoon, but t h a t document would complete 

our p r e s e n t a t i o n of evidence. 

CHAIRMAN LEMAY: W i l l there be an o p p o r t u n i t y 

anywhere here f o r questions of you gentlemen, or i s t h a t 
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j u s t not — 

MR. KELLAHIN: When we t a l k about how t o organize 

t h i s , I would be most d e l i g h t e d i f I could attempt t o 

answer questions as you had them. 

Both of us have f i l e d memorandums of law and 

arguments. I f those copies are not a v a i l a b l e t o you, I 

have a d d i t i o n a l copies f o r you t o consider. 

We have attempted t o organize ourselves on both 

sides of t h i s , so t h a t we could give you t h e f a c t s i n a 

summary fa s h i o n . They're a l l d e t a i l e d a t gre a t l e n g t h i n 

my memorandum, and my support f o r my p o s i t i o n i s incl u d e d 

i n t h a t document. And i f you would l i k e , I have more 

copies of t h a t . 

CHAIRMAN LEMAY: Let me ask something here, j u s t 

o f f t he record. 

(Off the record) 

CHAIRMAN LEMAY: Because of the unusual nature of 

t h i s case — I have t o admit, I have not had a de novo case 

presented where there have been no witnesses and j u s t 

summaries by the attorneys. I t ' s h e l p f u l f o r us t o be able 

t o ask you questions. 

And also, one of my Commissioners would l i k e , as 

j u s t an opening, t o each one of you, f o r one sentence, t e l l 

him what t h i s i s a l l about. And then from t h e r e you can — 

you k i n d of go i n t o i t . Because r i g h t now, they have no 
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idea what's going on. 

MR. KELLAHIN: Well, perhaps — May I suggest 

t h a t Mr. S t r a t t o n go f i r s t w i t h maybe a f i v e - m i n u t e summary 

of the major p o i n t s , and I ' l l take f i v e minutes and t r y t o 

give you a framework of r e a l l y what t h i s d i s p u t e i s about, 

and then we can go i n more d e t a i l as you begin t o become 

f a m i l i a r w i t h what we — ? 

CHAIRMAN LEMAY: I t h i n k t h a t would be h e l p f u l . 

I mean, yeah, before we even get i n t o any of t h i s , they 

can't see the s i g n i f i c a n c e of i t u n t i l they know what t h i s 

i s about. 

So i f you would do t h a t , Mr. S t r a t t o n , we'd 

appreciate i t . 

MR. STRATTON: Your Honor, I'm not sure my 

p r e s e n t a t i o n i s much longer than t h a t , so I t h i n k i t w i l l 

take me about two sentences t o make t h i n g s c l e a r . 

I might add t h a t a f i r s t f o r me i s als o having 

the judge ask me i f he can ask me questions. I wasn't 

q u i t e sure how t o respond t o t h a t . I thought about saying 

now, but obviously, you can ask us questions, and c e r t a i n l y 

I would hope t h a t you would ask questions t o c l a r i f y t h i s , 

because t h i s i s — i t i s unusual. You're not seeing the 

witnesses, you don't have the testimony, I know you haven't 

had time t o read i t . 

And so we're — so we s o r t of have a duty, I 
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t h i n k , I t o t r y t o get you up t o speed on t h i s . 

What t h i s case i s about i s , we represent a number 

of 16 working i n t e r e s t and o v e r r i d i n g r o y a l t y i n t e r e s t 

owners i n a p a r t i c u l a r piece of p r o p e r t y t h a t M i t c h e l l 

f i l e d an a p p l i c a t i o n t o pool, t h a t were not given n o t i c e of 

t h e hearing and d i d not appear a t the hearing and d i d not 

r e c e i v e any n o t i c e of the order t h a t was entered pursuant 

t o t h a t hearing. 

So once they learned of t h a t , they came and f i l e d 

an a p p l i c a t i o n t o reopen and say, due process has not been 

a f f o r d e d us, the order i s v o i d as t o us, and you need t o 

reopen the case and have the matter heard w i t h our 

i n t e r e s t s before the Commission. 

So t h a t ' s — i n a couple of sentences, i s what 

the whole case i s about. 

But the f a c t s t h a t we t h i n k are r e l e v a n t began 

back on October 2 6th of 1992 when Steve Smith, a landman 

f o r M i t c h e l l , c a l l e d Mark Murphy, the p r e s i d e n t of S t r a t a , 

and s t a r t e d t a l k i n g about d r i l l i n g t h i s Tomahawk Well and 

t r i e d t o n e g o t i a t e a deal. 

S t r a t a had some of the working i n t e r e s t s , and 

when we looked a t the r e a l estate records, i t appeared they 

had 25 percent of the working i n t e r e s t . 

At t h a t time, Mr. Murphy advised Mr. Smith t h a t 

he would consider i t , t h a t there were other people who had 
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int e r e s t s i n the property, and he was going t o t a l k t o him, 

and th a t they would proceed t o consider t h i s . 

There then were a number of telephone c a l l s 

during t h i s period as they negotiated t h i s w e l l . There 

were a number of pieces of correspondence tha t were passed 

back and f o r t h , and we — they're i n the record, and 

they're i n our b r i e f s . 

On December 9th, Mr. Murphy sent a l e t t e r , 

Exhibit 19, that talked about the negotiations t h a t were 

involved. 

The important issues, when i t comes t o these 

e x h i b i t s , from my c l i e n t ' s standpoint, i s whether M i t c h e l l 

or t h e i r representatives knew about or had reason t o know 

about or could have determined by due diligence whether 

t h e i r interests were — whether they had in t e r e s t s i n the 

property. 

And we allege, and i f y o u ' l l look at the record 

and testimony and also these e x h i b i t s , Exhibits 19, 20, 21 

and 23, a l l of them had references t o other i n d i v i d u a l s who 

had ownership i n t h i s p a r t i c u l a r piece of property, g i v i n g 

th a t t o Mr. Smith. 

I t appeared that things weren't going w e l l , so I 

think i t was about December 8th, an application was f i l e d 

f o r pooling, and an unconventional — or an unorthodox 

s i t e , or whatever you guys c a l l i t , as w e l l . 
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Negotiations continued, and i t continued, and 

then i t appears t h a t l i k e on about January 12th — a c t u a l l y 

January 13th, I guess, t h i n g s broke down between the 

p a r t i e s . And Mr. Smith from M i t c h e l l s a i d , Well now, who 

are these other i n t e r e s t owners t h a t you have? 

And then on the 13th, Mr. Murphy faxed t o Mr. 

Smith E x h i b i t 24. And E x h i b i t 24 i s a l e t t e r which l i s t s 

each and every i n t e r e s t owner, t h e i r address, and t h e i r 

percentage of i n t e r e s t i n the leasehold. And there's no 

di s p u t e about t h a t , Mr. Smith's got i t , he was aware of i t . 

Now, the hearing on the A p p l i c a t i o n was scheduled 

f o r January 21st. And so r a t h e r than c o n t i n u i n g the 

hearing or r a t h e r than p r o v i d i n g n o t i c e t o t h e i n t e r e s t 

owners, they went ahead and had the hearing, and t h e 

p o o l i n g order was entered, and — I t h i n k on February the 

15th. 

That order, then, was never sent t o these working 

i n t e r e s t owners and o v e r r i d i n g r o y a l t y i n t e r e s t owners. 

And then f i n a l l y the Tomahawk w e l l was d r i l l e d on 

May 18th, 1993. And j u s t f o r purposes of j u s t a l i t t l e 

preview down the l i n e as t o what the arguments may be and 

what r e a l l y happened, the leases — or the a b i l i t y t o d r i l l 

t h e w e l l under the leases, I understand, e x p i r e d — would 

have expi r e d on October 31st. 

So the issue i s whether under due process of law, 
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the US Constitution and the New Mexico Constitution our 

c l i e n t s got the requ i s i t e notice and opportunity t o be 

heard at t h i s p a r t i c u l a r hearing. Of course, we allege 

they didn't; we wouldn't be here i f we did. 

Now, sometimes i n New Mexico law we have problems 

f i n d i n g authority f o r things. Sometimes you have t o look 

at a l o t of d i f f e r e n t cases and i n a l o t of d i f f e r e n t 

places f o r authority. But i n t h i s p a r t i c u l a r case we're 

lucky, because we have one case that controls everything 

here. We have a l o t of in t e r e s t i n g US Supreme Court cases 

i n the b r i e f s . I f you don't have anything else t o do, 

they're i n t e r e s t i n g reading. They go back t o notice 

issues, t o 1915. 

But it's all contained in Uhden vs. New Mexico 

Oil Conservation Commission. 

And the operative language — There are two 

things I want to pass along to the Commission that are 

important in Uhden. 

One i s — and i t ' s hard to r e a l l y believe they 

have t o say t h i s , but they say i t and i t ' s important — 

Administrative proceedings must conform t o fundamental 

p r i n c i p l e s of j u s t i c e and the requirements of due process 

of law. 

I t seems odd, and I know t h i s Commission finds i t 

odd t h a t they would have t o say that . But when you look 
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across the breadth of administrative hearings, sometimes as 

an i n d i v i d u a l representing people before those, you wonder 

whether the administrative agencies r e a l l y believe t h a t . 

So the New Mexico courts continue t o t e l l us t h a t 

you have the same due process r i g h t s when somebody's 

ge t t i n g ready to deprive you of your property, when you 

come before an administrative agency as you do, before the 

courts i n New Mexico. 

And then they give us a paragraph here which i s 

tremendous, and I hadn't read i t before t h i s p a r t i c u l a r 

case, but t h i s says i t a l l r i g h t here, and t h i s can be used 

throughout New Mexico by administrative agencies, by courts 

or anybody else and throughout the country, f o r what the 

standard and what the r u l e i s when i t comes t o due process 

and notice. And i t ' s on page 531, and I j u s t want to read 

i t t o you. I t ' s very b r i e f . 

I f a party's i d e n t i t y and whereabouts are known 

or could be ascertained through due diligence, the 

due-process clause of the New Mexico and United States 

Constitutions requires the party who f i l e d the spacing 

application — 

— t h i s happened to be a spacing application i n t h i s 

case — 
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— t o provide n o t i c e of the pending proceeding by 

personal s e r v i c e t o such p a r t i e s whose p r o p e r t y r i g h t s 

ray be a f f e c t e d as a r e s u l t . 

That's the r u l e . I t works i n any forum i n New 

Mexico, and I'm j u s t b r i e f l y going t o apply t h a t t o t h i s 

p a r t i c u l a r f a c t s i t u a t i o n , using the Uhden language. 

F i r s t of a l l , the question who do you have t o 

n o t i f y ? 

You have t o n o t i f y those i n d i v i d u a l s i n the 

pr o p e r t y , who you know, or who you can a s c e r t a i n through 

due d i l i g e n c e . They don't have t o be recorded; there's no 

issue about t h a t . Some people t h i n k t h a t — there ' s a l o t 

of people t h a t t h i n k t h a t you have t o have any i n t e r e s t i n 

r e a l e s t a t e recorded. That's not the case. The issue i s 

knowledge, the issue i s whether you know about t h a t 

p a r t i c u l a r i n t e r e s t . 

I f I have a next-door neighbor who doesn't have 

h i s deed recorded but I know he l i v e s t h e r e and I'm g e t t i n g 

ready t o do a fo r e c l o s u r e case or a q u i e t - t i t l e case, even 

though h i s i n t e r e s t i s not recorded, since he l i v e s t h e r e I 

know he has a cla i m t o t h a t p r o p erty. I have t o put him i n 

the l a w s u i t . I f I don't, then t h a t l a w s u i t does not apply 

t o him. Just l i k e the M i t c h e l l a p p l i c a t i o n hearing doesn't 

apply t o our c l i e n t s , t h a t doesn't apply t o him. 
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So i t ' s not a question of recording. And th a t 

was one of the big arguments i n the case. I t ' s not i n the 

most recent b r i e f , but that was an argument down below, i s 

tha t these interests weren't recorded, therefore, they're 

no good. That's not the case. 

Uhden says, I f a party's i d e n t i t y and whereabouts 

are known or could be ascertained through due diligence... 

Here, Mr. Smith of M i t c h e l l , on October 26th, 1992, was put 

on notice that there were other interests i n t h i s property 

t h a t was going t o be pooled, and he did nothing. At that 

time, under Uhden, he had a duty t o ascertain those 

in t e r e s t s using due diligence. He could have done i t then. 

He didn't, he didn't do i t . There were more telephone 

c a l l s , as I indicated, throughout the f a l l where they 

talked about these interests. There are e x h i b i t s t h a t were 

exchanged where these interests are mentioned, and he s t i l l 

didn't do i t . 

And then f i n a l l y , on January 13th, he was sent a 

l e t t e r where he didn't have to look anywhere f o r these 

i n t e r e s t s . He had t h e i r names, telephone numbers, and the 

extent of the interests. And he s t i l l — S t i l l , no notice 

was given. 

Now, there's been another issue here which 

r e a l l y , when I conclude here, i s n ' t t h a t important, but I 

want t o t a l k about i t because i t ' s going t o be talked 
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about, and t h a t i s , who had the duty t o giv e the notice? 

There's been a l o t of a l l e g a t i o n s , a l o t of 

argument i n t h i s case, down below, t h a t S t r a t a had the duty 

t o g i v e n o t i c e , or t h a t our c l i e n t s had the duty t o come 

t a l k t o somebody and o b t a i n n o t i c e themselves, or somebody 

other than M i t c h e l l was supposed t o giv e n o t i c e . Well, 

t h a t ' s j u s t not what the law says. Uhden says t h a t t he 

p a r t y who f i l e d the spacing a p p l i c a t i o n must g i v e n o t i c e . 

Your Rule 1207 says t h a t the a p p l i c a n t has t o g i v e n o t i c e . 

And Mr. Smith, when he t e s t i f i e d i n our hearing here, from 

which t h i s appeal emanates, sai d t h a t i t was the a p p l i c a n t 

who i s supposed t o give n o t i c e . 

So one of the ruses t h a t ' s been used so f a r i s 

t h a t , w e l l , S t r a t a knew about t h i s ; they should have t o l d 

a l l these people about t h i s hearing, and then they would 

have had proper n o t i c e . They d i d n ' t have a duty t o do i t , 

i t wasn't them who were supposed t o do i t . 

But more i m p o r t a n t l y , the r e a l p o i n t i s , i t 

doesn't matter t o our c l i e n t s who was supposed t o g i v e 

n o t i c e , because they don't care, they need th e n o t i c e . And 

i f t h i s Commission doesn't have — I f they are not served 

by somebody — i t doesn't matter who i t i s , but i f they're 

not served by somebody, t h i s Commission doesn't have 

j u r i s d i c t i o n over t h e i r p r o perty r i g h t s . 

So i t r e a l l y doesn't matter who was supposed t o 
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g i v e n o t i c e t o us. We weren't given n o t i c e . And i t ' s 

c l e a r the a p p l i c a n t i s supposed t o give n o t i c e . You a l l 

know t h a t . You s i t through these cases a l l t h e tim e , so 

you know who gives the n o t i c e i n these p a r t i c u l a r cases. 

The next issue — t h i s maybe i s n ' t an issue here; 

i t ' s j u s t s l i g h t l y an issue — i s , what type of n o t i c e do 

you have t o give? What type of n o t i c e does t h e Commission 

have t o give? 

Well, you can't do i t by p u b l i c a t i o n . I mean, 

you know t h a t because you've had Uhden. Uhden — The New 

Mexico Supreme Court has t o l d you i n Uhden t h a t you can't 

use p u b l i c a t i o n f o r n o t i c e when i t comes t o due-process 

r i g h t s and p r o t e c t i v e property i n t e r e s t s . 

Most places i n the country — and t h i s has been 

approved by the United States Supreme Court — w i l l a l l o w 

n o t i c e by m a i l . But I'm a f r a i d t h a t i n New Mexico, due t o 

Uhden, m a i l i s n ' t even good enough. Uhden says t h a t t o 

provide n o t i c e , the Commission, i n a Commission proceeding, 

must be by personal service t o the p a r t i e s . 

And I've had people i n the i n d u s t r y say, Personal 

service? Oh my gosh. There's hundreds, there's thousands 

of i n t e r e s t s . Or, There's a whole l o t of i n t e r e s t s i n 

these cases. 

Well, there might be, and i t might be burdensome. 

But t h a t ' s what the New Mexico Supreme Court says has t o be 
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done. And i t seems rather — i t does seem harsh but, you 

know, that i s the r u l e , as you're w e l l aware, i n the court 

system. I f you're going to serve somebody i n New Mexico, 

you can't mail i t to them, you can't c a l l them on the 

phone, you can't publish i t i n the newspaper. You have t o 

give them personal service. And the New Mexico Supreme 

Court now says the Commission now has to give personal 

service. 

Here, you know, i t doesn't matter. No service 

was given whatsoever. There's no a l l e g a t i o n t h a t any 

service was given, whether i t was by mail or personal or 

whatever. There was publication, I th i n k , although I don't 

know th a t . But publication c e r t a i n l y doesn't work. 

And then f i n a l l y — I mean, the only issue th a t 

r e a l l y remains at t h i s point i s , then, w e l l , what type of 

people do you have to give i t to? And you have t o give i t 

t o people who have interests i n the property. 

And i n t h i s p a r t i c u l a r piece of property, a l l 16 

of our c l i e n t s had i n t e r e s t , which they a l l acquired i n 

1989, which was three years — three years before the 

application. And they are working i n t e r e s t owners. We 

have, I think — 14 are working i n t e r e s t owners and I t h i n k 

two are overriding royalty i n t e r e s t owners. That's i n the 

a f f i d a v i t s . 

But what type of i n t e r e s t i t i s , i t r e a l l y 
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doesn't matter, as long as i t ' s an i n t e r e s t t h a t i s 

protected, i t ' s a property r i g h t . And when I say 

"property", I don't necessarily mean r e a l property; i t ' s a 

property r i g h t . 

So that's what happened i n t h i s case, and that's 

why we're here today, i s because we didn't get notice of 

tha t previous hearing. We're e n t i t l e d t o i t , and we're 

here asking the Commission — We asked the Division t o 

reopen the case, which they did, and we're asking the 

Commission at a de novo hearing now to reopen the case. 

Now, what i s the e f f e c t of not gi v i n g notice? 

That question always arises when i t comes t o notice cases. 

People say, Well, maybe we would have gone back and — 

Well, l e t ' s go back and we'll do the same th i n g . Or, Let's 

— We would have done the same thi n g anyway, even i f they 

had been here. Or something l i k e t h a t . 

Doesn't work, because the order i s not e f f e c t i v e . 

I t ' s t o t a l l y i n e f f e c t i v e . 

The words that Uhden used — We're back t o Uhden 

again, which i s the case that has everything i n i t . Uhden 

found th a t the orders entered by the Commission without 

notice t o Ms. Uhden are hereby void as to Uhden. 

"Void" means as i f i t had never happened, when i t 

comes to these p a r t i c u l a r individuals. I t ' s not voidable. 

You hear "voidable" and "void". "Voidable" means unless 
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somebody does something t o v o i d i t , i t ' s s t i l l okay. 

"Void" means v o i d from i t s i n c e p t i o n , as i f i t never 

happened; the order i s i n e f f e c t i v e t o the people who were 

not given n o t i c e . And t h a t ' s c l e a r l y the case. 

And the United States Supreme Court has als o 

d e f i n e d i t as — " v o i d " as being t h a t , and meaning t h a t you 

have t o come back and s t a r t a l l over. 

So t h a t ' s the issue. 

And I j u s t want t o p o i n t out a couple o f t h i n g s , 

and I'm f i n i s h e d here today, w i t h the e x h i b i t s and 

e v e r y t h i n g you have, c e r t a i n l y w i t h my opening. But I'm, 

once again, c e r t a i n l y happy t o open or answer questions. 

There were — I'm not q u i t e going t o t r y t o 

q u a n t i f y i t , but there were many t h i n g s t h a t could have 

happened i n t h i s case, short of personal s e r v i c e or 

anything e l s e , t h a t would avoid us being here today. There 

are p l e n t y of o p p o r t u n i t i e s t o avoid t h i s . 

I mean, f i r s t of a l l , on October 26th, Mr. Smith 

could have gone out and done the r i g h t t h i n g . I mean, he 

could have gone out, ascertained the i n t e r e s t s and then 

provided n o t i c e when a hearing came up, or any time a f t e r 

t h a t . 

The same t h i n g could have been done on January 

13th. You know, i t ' s my understanding t h a t i f t h a t hearing 

had been delayed, i t would have been a two-week delay. The 
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w e l l wasn't d r i l l e d u n t i l May, and the w e l l d i d n ' t have t o 

be d r i l l e d u n t i l October. So i t seemed l i k e a very small 

t h i n g t o — i n order t o get the r i g h t people before the 

Commission, t o delay the hearing. 

Next, and t h i s wouldn't have been 

C o n s t i t u t i o n a l l y f i r m , but p r a c t i c a l l y we wouldn't be here 

i f a f t e r the order was entered i t had been sent t o these 

i n d i v i d u a l s . But even on February 15th, the order d i d n ' t 

get sent. Does t h a t cure the C o n s t i t u t i o n a l i n f i r m i t y of 

the hearing? No. Would t h a t have p r a c t i c a l l y taken care 

of things? Very w e l l — Very w e l l might have. 

And Mr. Smith, i n our l a s t hearing, t e s t i f i e d as 

t o the r e a l reason t h i s doesn't happen, and he a c t u a l l y 

t e s t i f i e d t o i t , and I t h i n k he was honest about i t . He 

s a i d they d i d n ' t want t o be delayed i n doing t h i s , t h a t 

stopping and w a i t i n g two weeks and p r o v i d i n g n o t i c e t o a l l 

these people — they j u s t d i d n ' t want t o be delayed by i t . 

And I t h i n k i t ' s j u s t s l i g h t l y more — I t h i n k 

not only d i d they not want t o be delayed, they d i d n ' t want 

t o have t o deal w i t h my c l i e n t s who had these i n t e r e s t s . 

And I t h i n k he believed t h a t t h a t was a good enough reason 

t o do t h i s . 

But I can t e l l you, when i t gets t o the New 

Mexico Supreme Court, they're not going t o agree w i t h t h a t . 

They're not going t o say, Well, because i t inconvenienced 
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you we're not going to aff o r d these people these due-

process r i g h t s . 

Those of us who engage i n l i t i g a t i o n i n 

Constitutional cases and a l l types of l i t i g a t i o n do 

everything we can to get everybody we can, i n f r o n t of the 

court, so we can get them bound. I mean, we serve people 

we shouldn•t even serve. 

Here, i t appears t o me that i t ' s j u s t the 

opposite, t h a t the idea i s , i f an applicant comes i n and 

they can get away with not serving people and s l i p things 

through, th a t that's the way to do i t . 

That doesn't work in the court system. And I can 

predict for you that when this gets to the court system, 

the court is going to look at it and use its standards and 

say, My goodness, you knew about all these people and you 

didn't notify them? What are you thinking about? Get in 

there and notify them and get it over with, just as the 

case in Uhden. 

So Mr. Chairman, that's my presentation. I'm 

happy t o answer any questions. 

I've got two b r i e f s i n — before the Division, 

and what I'd l i k e to do i s leave those with you. Mr. 

Kellahin has f i l e d another b r i e f with the Commission. I 

thi n k everything i s covered, so I wouldn't intend t o reply 

t o t h a t , but I would l i k e t o j u s t leave you the b r i e f s t h a t 
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I d i d before the D i v i s i o n . 

CHAIRMAN LEMAY: Okay, i t s t i l l may be h e l p f u l i f 

we hear Mr. K e l l a h i n ' s p r e s e n t a t i o n , and then we could ask 

some questions of e i t h e r one. 

COMMISSIONER WEISS: Yeah, yeah. 

CHAIRMAN LEMAY: I s t h a t okay? 

COMMISSIONER BAILEY: Fine. 

CHAIRMAN LEMAY: Mr. Kell a h i n ? 

MR. KELLAHIN: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 

The b r i e f I've handed out, f i l e d e a r l i e r i s the 

one i n the — i t ' s got a p l a s t i c cover sheet and i t ' s got a 

s p i r a l on i t , and i t should be on top of t h a t stack i n 

f r o n t of you, Mr. Chairman, there's a case f i l e . Farther 

ahead, towards me, s i r . Yes, s i r . 

CHAIRMAN LEMAY: Okay. 

MR. KELLAHIN: Let me describe f o r you how i t ' s 

organized. 

I n the back end I've attempted t o separate by a 

blue t a b — and I may have missed i t i n some of the 

book l e t s , but there w i l l be an E x h i b i t A which represents 

Examiner Stogner's order i n 1993 on the M i t c h e l l f o r c e -

p o o l i n g a p p l i c a t i o n . So y o u ' l l have t h a t t o look a t . 

The next order t h a t ' s i n the book i s marked 

E x h i b i t B, and t h a t ' s Mr. Stogner's d e c i s i o n from the May, 

1996, hearing which was issued on October 2nd of 1996. 
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The b r i e f i s organized so that commencing on page 

6, there i s the s t a r t of numbered paragraphs, which are 

numbered 1 through 33. And I've attempted t o o u t l i n e f o r 

you i n d e t a i l the chronology of the s p e c i f i c events. 

Ahead of the factual summary i s about f i v e pages 

i n which I have ci t e d t o the t r a n s c r i p t , and I have w r i t t e n 

i n paragraph 4 the basic argument of our p o s i t i o n and why 

we disagree with Branko's position. 

And then a f t e r that I have subdivided the 

memorandum t o deal with the speci f i c topics t h a t have been 

discussed, and t h i s i s my e f f o r t t o consolidate, revise, 

analyze and provide footnotes f o r you so t h a t t h i s 

document, i f read by i t s e l f independent of anything else, 

would represent Mitchell's position. 

The fundamental issue that you have before you i s 

the question of when the Strata partners acquired a 

property i n t e r e s t that needs to be protected. We contend 

th a t unfortunately for Strata and Mr. Murphy and a l l his 

partners, that that i n t e r e s t did not arise u n t i l November 

6th of 1995, some 32 months a f t e r Strata was force-pooled. 

How could t h a t be? Well, l e t me t e l l you how. 

I n 1992, when Mit c h e l l i s beginning t o propose 

the w e l l , Mr. Steve Smith commences discussion with Mark 

Murphy of Strata, and Mr. Murphy t e l l s Mr. Smith t h a t he i s 

dealing f o r and on behalf of a bunch of partners. He 
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ch a r a c t e r i z e s them as long-term i n v e s t o r s . 

I n October of 1992, Mr. Smith has conducted a 

t i t l e search of the county records, and he has determined 

t h a t the f e d e r a l lease f o r which he's a t t e m p t i n g t o get 

S t r a t a ' s cooperation and support i s a f e d e r a l lease h e l d by 

S t r a t a . 

S t r a t a has the record t i t l e , they have t h e 

o p e r a t i n g r i g h t s , they have the e n t i r e 25 percent of what 

t u r n s out t o be a 32 0-acre spacing u n i t . Mr. Smith has 

conso l i d a t e d a l l the r e s t of the i n t e r e s t , and t h i s i s the 

outstanding i n t e r e s t remaining. He has g o t t e n Santa Fe 

Energy and Maralo and others t o buy i n t o i t . 

So he's got 75 percent of the i n t e r e s t i n the 

spacing u n i t , and he's going out and l o o k i n g f o r the 

balance. And he makes a contact w i t h Mr. Murphy who, of 

record through S t r a t a , has the remaining 25 percent. 

So from October 26th of 1992 t o January 23rd of 

1993, Mr. Murphy i s c h a r a c t e r i z i n g these people as h i s 

p a r t n e r s and h i s long-time i n v e s t o r s . 

P r i o r t o January 13th — and t h a t ' s a s i g n i f i c a n t 

date because i t ' s j u s t a week before the hearing — January 

13th, 1993, Mr. Murphy has t o l d S t r a t a t h a t he's got 

p a r t n e r s , long-time i n v e s t o r s , but he doesn't d i s c l o s e t h a t 

they, i n f a c t , own an i n t e r e s t , t h a t — doesn't d i s c l o s e 

t h e i r i d e n t i t y , who they are, what percentage they have or 
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how t o contact them. 

In November of 1992, Mr. Murphy t e l l s Smith t h a t 

Strata w i l l defend i t s e l f and a l l i t s partners during a 

proceeding, including force-pooling. And there's numerous 

phone c a l l s , and there's l o t s of correspondence back and 

f o r t h . 

F i n a l l y , on November 20th, 1992, M i t c h e l l 

formally proposes the Tomahawk wel l t o Strata and t o 

Murphy. 

On December 7th, M i t c h e l l f i l e s i t s compulsory 

pooling application, which i s set f o r hearing on January 

7th. I t l a t e r gets delayed. 

But on December 9th, 1992, i n accordance w i t h how 

we practice the n o t i f i c a t i o n s , Strata i s served and signs 

the green card, receiving notice of the hearing and a copy 

of the compulsory pooling application. 

Even a f t e r that date, Mr. Murphy continues to 

deal on behalf of his partners and on behalf of Strata t o 

s e l l or farm out the i n t e r e s t to M i t c h e l l . 

I n f a c t , y o u ' l l f i n d i n the t r a n s c r i p t , and we've 

c i t e d the document, on December 30th, 1992, Mark Murphy has 

signed a l e t t e r , and he communicates i t t o M i t c h e l l , and he 

t a l k s about his undisclosed owners. He even characterizes 

them as undisclosed owners. And he says, Strata hereby 

represents and warrants unto M i t c h e l l t h a t i t has the 
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power, the r i g h t and authority t o s e l l 100 percent of the 

subject lease f o r benefit of the undisclosed owners. 

Mr. M i t c h e l l — I'm sorry, Mr. Smith, on behalf 

of M i t c h e l l , attempts to accept the proposal from Strata. 

There's a difference between Smith and M i t c h e l l about what 

the deal i s , and i t f i n a l l y f a l l s apart. 

And so the afternoon before the hearing, 30 days 

a f t e r Strata has been served, then we receive n o t i f i c a t i o n 

t h a t Mr. Cavin i s going t o enter his appearance f o r Strata, 

and we continue the case. 

The case i s continued. And then i n January, on 

the 12th of January, 1993, Strata sends M i t c h e l l t h i s l i s t 

of partners. The problem i s that Mr. Murphy doesn't sign 

and delive r the assignments u n t i l November 7th of 1995. 

Thirty-one months l a t e r , he delivers the assignments, puts 

them of record, and writes them a l e t t e r t o the e f f e c t , 

Dear partners, i t ' s come to my knowledge tha t M i t c h e l l ' s 

Tomahawk we l l has now paid out, and you might have a claim 

against them to recover your proportionate share of the 

r i s k - f a c t o r penalty. 

Mr. Murphy, a f t e r the pooling order was issued, 

wrote M i t c h e l l and said, I'm going t o communicate a l l t h i s 

s t u f f t o my partners. And then apparently he doesn't do 

i t , because he waits and i t doesn't happen. 

I n f a c t , February 24th, 1993, Murphy advises 
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M i t c h e l l , I t i s my — Mr. Murphy's — i n t e n t i o n t o discuss 

Mitchell's proposal with the other lease owners, and i t 

goes on and on. 

So here's the problem. The fundamental issue i s 

to decide — someone decide, maybe not us, but eventually 

we have to decide f o r force-pooling cases, and i n t h i s 

case, when do the undisclosed Strata partners have a 

property i n t e r e s t that needs to be protected? 

We look at the statutory language. Under New 

Mexico law i t says a l l assignments and other instruments of 

transfer are supposed to be recorded. And i t says, No 

assignment or other instrument a f f e c t i n g the t i t l e — i n 

t h i s on/" we're t a l k i n g about r o y a l t i e s , but there's an 

applicable provision with regards t o i n t e r e s t — i t says, 

Such r o y a l t i e s not recorded are herein provided s h a l l — no 

assignment s h a l l a f f e c t record unless they're of record or 

without knowledge of the existence of such unrecorded 

instrument. 

Mr. Stratton wants t o charge M i t c h e l l w i t h notice 

of a document before i t ' s even executed, much less 

recorded, and the question i s , how i s M i t c h e l l supposed t o 

know t h i s unrecorded instrument exists u n t i l the instrument 

i s executed and recorded? 

Branko maintains that simply by t e l l i n g somebody 

you've got partners and investors should t r i g g e r an 
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o b l i g a t i o n on Mitchell's part to go out and look f o r a l l 

these people. And yet when you look, you can't f i n d them 

of public record. 

And therein l i e s the dilemma, I t h i n k , f o r a l l of 

us tha t do t h i s kind of work, i s that a f t e r a party i s 

served with a compulsory pooling application, t h a t service 

taking place on December 9th, 1992, thereafter, the 

following month and the next year, Mr. Murphy discloses a 

l i s t of what he says i s his partners. 

And the issue i s whether or not that should cause 

M i t c h e l l t o engage i n anything else. We believe the law of 

New Mexico requires us to do nothing else, t h a t having 

found and determined and served the part i e s at the time 

those interests were known and of record t o everyone else, 

i s the time you f i x f o r n o t i f i c a t i o n . 

The Division has agreed with us on t h a t issue. 

They have characterized t h i s i n one of the orders as a 

c u t o f f date f o r n o t i f i c a t i o n . 

You may investigate and examine tha t decision, 

but I'm i n agreement with what the Division d i d with 

regards t o notice — notice of hearings f o r the c u t o f f 

date, and that's the notice you're served f o r hearing. 

What has occurred i s that a f t e r the force-pooling 

order was issued, M i t c h e l l made the choice t o provide the 

ele c t i o n t o the parties post-order t o Strata. And you can 
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look at Mr. Stogner's f i r s t order, and he goes on at 

incredible length, t a l k i n g about t h i s issue. 

We spent a l o t of time back i n 1993 w i t h Mr. 

Cavin and Mr. Murphy, t a l k i n g about t h e i r desire t o 

continue the case, so that M i t c h e l l would be required t o 

provide notice to a l l these i n t e r e s t owners. I t was 

debated, discussed and decided. Their motion t o continue 

was denied and we went forward. 

The order was entered. Subsequent t o the order, 

Strata was n o t i f i e d . We did not choose t o chase a f t e r a l l 

the r e s t of these 15 investors. I t ' s our p o s i t i o n t h a t we 

have no obligation to chase a f t e r them u n t i l an instrument 

i s executed and delivered to us, to l e t us know t h a t they 

have tha t i n t e r e s t . 

You're not required t o record i t , necessarily, 

but i f you have an instrument, an assignment that's signed, 

appears v a l i d on i t s face, notarized and signed by the 

r i g h t people and they deliver i t t o you, then at t h a t point 

you have an obligation to substitute them i n . And we would 

have substituted them i n , i n the shoes of Strata, and then 

we'd go forward and, we contend, s t i l l be subject t o the 

200-percent r i s k factor. 

So what's occurring here i s , Mr. Murphy chooses 

not t o t e l l his partners, apparently — although i t ' s hard 

to believe that they did not know u n t i l a year a f t e r the 
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lease i n which they held an i n t e r e s t e x p i r e d , but t h a t ' s 

t h e p o s i t i o n they take, t h a t they d i d n ' t know. He chooses 

not t o t e l l them; he says he's going t o . 

And then the assignment i s 31 months l a t e r , a f t e r 

t h e w e l l i s paid out conveniently, and he knows t h a t . He 

t e l l s them, Here's your assignment, I've placed i t of 

r e c o r d , you have i t now, and by the way, you now have a 

c l a i m against M i t c h e l l t o recover some of the p e n a l t y . 

Mr. S t r a t t o n wants t o r e l y on the Uhden case. I 

t h i n k h i s r e l i a n c e i s misplaced. Let's t a l k about t h a t 

case. I t ' s a s t a r t i n g p o i n t f o r convenience. 

You may remember the Uhden case. I t had t o do 

w i t h Cedar H i l l s , the f i r s t c oal gas pool we adopted up 

t h e r e i n the San Juan Basin. Amoco had done a couple of 

w e l l s i n Cedar H i l l s and were running some i n t e r f e r e n c e 

t e s t s , and had o r i g i n a l l y developed i t on statewide 160 gas 

spacing, because i t was the appropriate r u l e t o apply. I t 

had some i n i t i a l w e l l s , two of which were on 160-acre 

spacing u n i t s , i n which Mr. Uhden had an i n t e r e s t . 

And how d i d we know she had an i n t e r e s t ? She was 

Amoco's lessee. Amoco had replaced her o r i g i n a l lessee, 

and Amoco knew Mrs. Uhden. They knew where t o f i n d her, 

they knew her i n t e r e s t was of record, i t was an assignment 

t o t h e i r company. You could check p u b l i c records and f i n d 

out who she was. They were paying her money. She had an 
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i n t e r e s t i n the spacing u n i t . 

Substantial difference between Mrs. Uhden and the 

Strata undisclosed partners. You can't f i n d them by public 

record, they're not your payees, you're r e l y i n g on Strata 

and they t e l l you, Hey, we defend f o r these people, we 

represent these people, they're our long-time investors, 

and we deal with Strata. 

Mrs. Uhden was being paid on 160-acre spacing f o r 

the wells on her u n i t . 

After Amoco developed the interference t e s t , they 

developed enough science t o demonstrate t o the Division 

t h a t we could temporarily expand spacing i n Cedar H i l l s and 

go t o 320 gas spacing. And Amoco f i l e d the application t o 

do t h a t . 

They did not choose t o n o t i f y Mrs. Uhden, one of 

t h e i r payees. They argued that under her lease they had 

the r i g h t t o change the spacing because there was a clause 

provision i n her lease that l e t them change the spacing t o 

conform t o New Mexico O i l Conservation Division rules. 

So they ignored her, changed the spacing, got i t 

approved by the Division and went t o 320 spacing. Do you 

see what happened t o her interest? Divided r i g h t i n h a l f . 

And a l l of a sudden, Mrs. Uhden's nice check got cut i n 

h a l f , and she says, What are you people doing t o me? 

And they said, Well, we changed the rules. 
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She said, You should have t o l d me, you affected 

my i n t e r e s t . 

The New Mexico Supreme Court says t h i s woman has 

a property i n t e r e s t , you can f i n d i t , i t ' s there, i t ' s 

vested i n her, and she's e n t i t l e d t o notice as one of these 

payees. 

I think there's a substantial difference i n Mrs. 

Uhden who, you know, you f i n d , her i n t e r e s t i s by a 

conveyance, i t exists, and yet Strata partners want t o be 

i n Mrs. Uhden's shoes. And I think what happens i s , the 

system gets manipulated, we get taken advantage of, and we 

run the r i s k of having t h i s game played before the Division 

i n terms of compulsory pooling orders. 

The problem i s t h i s : Once you serve the 

ind i v i d u a l s , then the obligation s h i f t s t o those 

individuals served, to either defend t h e i r i n t e r e s t or, i f 

they assign t h e i r i n t e r e s t , t o make sure the pa r t i e s they 

assign t h e i r i n t e r e s t t o are properly substituted. 

And that's the way i t goes i n d i s t r i c t court. 

You can f i l e q u i e t - t i t l e s u i t , and i f I look i n the records 

and I f i n d that Commissioner LeMay has a house over next t o 

me and he's affected, then I'm going t o serve him. And I 

may not know he's got investors, and I may not know t h a t he 

j u s t agreed and took a check t o s e l l h is house t o somebody 

else. I don't know about that person at a l l . But once 
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I've served him, the o b l i g a t i o n i s upon Commissioner LeMay 

t o get h i s purchaser, h i s grantee, h i s assignee, the person 

he's going t o convey the property, n o t i f i e d and p r o p e r l y 

s u b s t i t u t e d . Why should I chase a f t e r your assignee? And 

what happens i f you decide, i n order t o defeat the p o o l i n g 

process, t o assign your i n t e r e s t t o everybody i n the 

A r t e s i a phone book? Now what happens? I ' l l never get t h i s 

pooled. I ' l l never f i n d a l l these people. 

The dilemma w i t h what we have before us now i s 

t h a t the D i v i s i o n has es t a b l i s h e d a c u t o f f date, f o r which 

I have no disagreement. I t h i n k i t ' s f a i r and a p p r o p r i a t e 

f o r the D i v i s i o n t o say t h a t when a p a r t y i s served, t h a t 

p a r t y i s the p a r t y . And i f i t ' s t o be somebody e l s e , they 

need t o f i g u r e out how t o s u b s t i t u t e them i n . 

What I disagree w i t h f o r the D i v i s i o n i s t h a t 

they have f i x e d another p o i n t i n time t o set up a d i f f e r e n t 

set of people t o be served w i t h the e l e c t i o n s a f t e r t he 

order. And I don't t h i n k they intended t o do t h a t ; i t ' s 

simply the way the order got d r a f t e d . 

And here's what's the problem w i t h the order: 

We've got the p a r t i e s f i x e d as of the date they r e c e i v e 

a p p l i c a t i o n , go through the hearing process, get an order. 

You then, under what the D i v i s i o n has t o l d us t o do, must 

again search the record, you must again go out and f i n d a l l 

the t h i n g s t h a t may have happened between the date the 
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application i s served and the order i s issued f o r which 

you're going t o serve people again. 

I don't think that should be our burden. I'm not 

sure i t helps Branko, because the search doesn't t e l l us 

anything. What we did know i s , here's a l i s t of investors. 

I f you decide that that l i s t of investors being 

t o l d t o Mi t c h e l l i s enough, that we should have done 

something else but we didn't do i t , we don't t h i n k i t ' s 

wrong, but y o u ' l l have to decide that issue, because that's 

what Mr. Stratton i s debating. 

My problem i s , with the Division order, i s , they 

say, A l l r i g h t , you knew that these people existed. You 

may not know of what they had, but you should have given 

them the order and given an election a f t e r the order. 

I t begs the question. I t l e t s Strata do exactly 

what the Division was t r y i n g t o preclude when they f i x e d 

the c u t o f f date f o r n o t i f i c a t i o n . I t j u s t s h i f t s the point 

i n time where you get to manipulate and play the game of 

who gets notice and what happens, when. 

And look how f a r they played the game. They 

waited 31 months. And why? Well, because the w e l l paid 

out. And we're t a l k i n g about big bucks. This i s a 

m i l l i o n - d o l l a r w e l l . Twenty-five percent of a m i l l i o n 

d o l l a r s i s a bunch. And i t ' s paid out one time, and i t ' s 

moving towards twice. We're looking at $300,000 i n dispute 
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here, and t h a t ' s why we have got people coming out of the 

woodwork a f t e r the f a c t , wanting t h e i r money back. 

This i s a matter of p o l i c y f o r the D i v i s i o n , i t ' s 

a matter of precedent and p o l i c y f o r the Commission, and 

you need t o decide the fundamental issue, i s , when and how 

i s an a p p l i c a n t before your agency supposed t o know and 

determine the i n d i v i d u a l s f o r which you're going t o serve 

i n order t o commit t h e i r i n t e r e s t , i n order t h a t they share 

i n t h e costs of the well? 

I t ' s our contention, as you can read i n t h e 

b r i e f , i s t h a t event d i d not occur u n t i l November 7 t h , 

1995. 

The D i v i s i o n order, as i t now stands, unless 

m o d i f i e d , has r e q u i r e d us t o come back t o a hearing t o be 

scheduled a t the D i v i s i o n l e v e l , t o go through a hearing t o 

t a l k about how the S t r a t a p a r t ners are t o share i n t h e cost 

and what's supposed t o happen. 

We b e l i e v e t h a t t h a t ' s not necessary. Our 

o p i n i o n and our p o s i t i o n i s t h a t the S t r a t a p a r t n e r s — 

S t r a t a went nonconsent. They were served. They re c e i v e d a 

small share, and they kept a small share, and they assigned 

t h e r e s t of i t . And I f o r g o t the percentages, but i t ' s i n 

the b r i e f . They kept p a r t of i t and assigned the r e s t . 

They were served w i t h a n o t i c e . They f a i l e d t o 

make the e l e c t i o n . 
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Inte r e s t i n g thing happened a f t e r the Examiner 

order: They went de novo. We were ready t o come before 

you, and the afternoon before the de novo hearing I got a 

transmission from Mr. Cavin, Mr. Stratton's partner, saying 

they were abandoning the appeal. You know, the issue t h a t 

would have come before you i n 1993 would have been the 

debate over these partners, and they pulled the plug on i t , 

and i t went away. 

So we're saying that t h a t i n t e r e s t , t h a t 25 

percent, stayed locked at that point i n time, u n t i l such 

time as M i t c h e l l recovers the 200-percent penalty t h a t was 

awarded, tha t Strata and i t s undisclosed partners are not 

e n t i t l e d t o any other elections. 

I n t e r e s t i n g what's about t o happen: The Morrow 

zone i n the w e l l i s beginning to deplete. There's concern 

about how long the well i s going to sustain i t s e l f . I t ' s 

on compression now. The evidence would demonstrate t h a t a 

decision has got t o be made soon about elec t i o n t o 

perforate another Morrow i n t e r v a l . I t w i l l not surprise me 

to see Strata wanting to have a free r i d e on th a t e l e c t i o n , 

and yet we need that production t o pay o f f the penalty. 

The position i s , they're not e n t i t l e d t o any 

other elections u n t i l we get paid out, and they're not 

partie s with an affected i n t e r e s t u n t i l they at least take 

the step of signing an instrument, making tha t i n t e r e s t 
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e x i s t and g i v i n g us a way t o f i n d out about t h a t i n t e r e s t . 

The orders are i n t e r e s t i n g . You can see how hard 

Mr. C a r r o l l and Mr. Stogner s t r u g g l e d w i t h t he order. I t 

goes i n t o i n c r e d i b l e l e n g t h , t a l k i n g about how disappointed 

th e D i v i s i o n i s w i t h the t a c t i c s t h a t S t r a t a has u t i l i z e d 

here. 

U l t i m a t e l y , they decided t o open t h e hearing f o r 

t h i s e l e c t i o n . And I t h i n k , i n r e f l e c t i o n , t h a t t h a t 

wasn't necessary, because you need t o look t o two t h i n g s : 

One, when d i d the S t r a t a partners get t h e i r i n t e r e s t ? 

November of 1995. And i f you provide as a matter of p o l i c y 

t h a t the n o t i f i c a t i o n s are t i e d back i n t o t he date the 

a p p l i c a t i o n i s served on you, t h i s i s an e f f e c t i v e and 

e f f i c i e n t means by which everyone's i n t e r e s t i s p r o t e c t e d , 

not o n l y M i t c h e l l ' s but S t r a t a . 

I can't imagine i t would be any f a i r e r than i f 

you're the p a r t y of record, you're the p a r t y I'm d e a l i n g 

w i t h , and you t e l l me you're going t o defend and represent 

these i n t e r e s t s , and I serve you, and you l a t e r t e l l me 

otherwise, i t should be your o b l i g a t i o n t o get them i n t o 

t h e hearing room, and not mine. 

Thank you, t h a t ' s a l l I have. 

CHAIRMAN LEMAY: Thank you, Mr. K e l l a h i n . 

Okay, d i d you have anything t o say, or i s i t — 

your presence here i s t o ask questions too or — 
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MR. CARROLL: Mr. Chairman, as you're probably 

w e l l aware o f , the D i v i s i o n i s a very i n t e r e s t e d p a r t y i n 

t h i s case, and your d e c i s i o n i n t h i s matter i s going t o 

a f f e c t how we conduct our proceedings from here on out. 

At the case heard i n May where the D i v i s i o n 

reopened the case, we looked a t the evidence and determined 

t h a t t h e r e should be a c u t o f f date. And I could ask a 

m i l l i o n questions regarding the circumstances and pose 

scenarios t o you as t o the t e r r i b l e outcomes t h a t could 

occur before the D i v i s i o n , based upon s i m i l a r - t y p e f a c t u a l 

s i t u a t i o n s . 

For instance, i f S t r a t a s a i d i t had p a r t n e r s and 

i n t h i s case also represented — i t had p a r t n e r s i n t h i s 

lease i t represented, i t could also s e l l t he lease on 

behalf of i t s p a r t n e r s , and they would represent t h e 

pa r t n e r s i n a f o r c e - p o o l i n g proceeding and then s a i d , Well, 

I'm not going t o t e l l you who my par t n e r s are. 

I mean, where does t h a t leave an a p p l i c a n t ? They 

know t h a t there's partners out t h e r e , but they don»t know 

who t o serve, and the p a r t y won't t e l l them. Wel l , unless 

i t ' s of record, they won't know who t o serve, so t h e y ' l l 

have t o proceed j u s t against the p a r t y of record. 

Now, as t o the second c u t o f f date — The f i r s t 

c u t o f f date i s f o r a p p l i c a t i o n f o r hearing, who should be 

n o t i f i e d of the hearing. And i n the D i v i s i o n d e c i s i o n we 
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decided th a t the party of record and any other actual 

owners known to Mi t c h e l l should be n o t i f i e d . And at the 

time the application was f i l e d M i t c h e l l d i d not know the 

names of any of these undisclosed partners and r e l i e d upon 

representations of Strata. 

The Division — thing about the el e c t i o n period 

said that M i t c h e l l had the names of the working i n t e r e s t 

owners i n hand and did not n o t i f y them of t h e i r e l e c t i o n 

r i g h t s . 

Now, there's a bunch of questions regarding t h a t 

too. For instance, a party could say, Well, my partners — 

using Mr. Kellahin's example — are those l i s t e d i n the 

Artesia phone book. And then y o u ' l l n o t i f y a l l of them and 

say, Hey, these people i n the Artesia phone book don't own 

an i n t e r e s t . 

And then the party w i l l say, Well, I made a 

mistake, I actually didn't convey a l l these i n t e r e s t s . And 

a party could r e a l l y impose a l o t of obstacles t o an 

applicant ever getting an order from the Division by 

playing a l o t of games with notice. 

I think what the Division would l i k e from the 

Commission i s d e f i n i t e l y guidance and some f i r m rules. 

I n t h i s s i t u a t i o n what would help, I guess, i s 

th a t the applicant s t i c k with the parties of record unless 

they receive notice and an executed instrument showing tha t 
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a t r a n s f e r a c t u a l l y occurred, r a t h e r than j u s t a b a l d 

statement saying, These are my pa r t n e r s , whether i t be 15 

or the A r t e s i a phone book, and here are the executed 

instruments t h a t they have signed, even i f t h e y ' r e not 

recorded. I n t h i s s i t u a t i o n i t wouldn't have helped 

because the r e was no executed instruments. 

I could pose a number of other scenarios. We're 

j u s t — The D i v i s i o n i s very wary, e s p e c i a l l y , of Mr. 

S t r a t t o n ' s suggestion t h a t personal s e r v i c e would be 

re q u i r e d of a l l p a r t i e s i n our proceedings, and not s e r v i c e 

by m a i l , by c e r t i f i e d m a i l . 

I t h i n k — I don't know the C o n s t i t u t i o n a l i t y of 

p r o v i d i n g n o t i c e j u s t by c e r t i f i e d m a i l , as we c u r r e n t l y 

do, versus personal s e r v i c e . But as you w e l l know, t h a t 

would cost the i n d u s t r y many — probably m i l l i o n s of 

d o l l a r s every year, h i r i n g personal process servers. 

So I guess the D i v i s i o n appears as an i n t e r e s t e d 

p a r t y , and a f r i g h t e n e d p a r t y . 

MR. STRATTON: Mr. Chairman, could I j u s t — I ' l l 

be very b r i e f . I mean, I ' d l i k e t o respond t o a couple of 

those — 

CHAIRMAN LEMAY: Sure. 

MR. STRATTON: — t h i n g s and j u s t a couple o f . . . 

I d i d n ' t suggest personal s e r v i c e . Uhden says 

personal s e r v i c e . I appreciate the e l e v a t i o n t o the c o u r t , 
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but i t wasn't me that did t h a t ; i t ' s Uhden t h a t says t h a t . 

I don't thi n k personal service ought t o be necessary, but 

the New Mexico Supreme Court says i t ' s necessary. 

Secondly, I'm not representing Strata here. None 

of my c l i e n t s are Strata, none of my c l i e n t s are 

represented by Strata, none of my c l i e n t s gave Strata any 

autho r i t y t o accept service of process on t h e i r behalf. 

And so Strata was here, they got notice, they 

made t h e i r election, they're out. But — And so I know the 

attempt i s to confuse Strata and impute everything t h a t 

Strata did to my c l i e n t s . 

But a party can't come i n here and say, Oh, I 

represent everybody i n the Artesia phone book, and then 

accept service on behalf of everybody i n the Artesia phone 

book. You've got to — We have ways we do t h a t i n New 

Mexico. You f i l e under the law. You get a registered 

service agent and you can serve him. Otherwise, you have 

to serve the party personally. 

So to suggest that we are somehow bound because 

Strata had negotiations with these people i s j u s t 

r i d i c u l o u s . 

And then f i n a l l y , I j u s t want t o say t h a t every 

one of Mr. Carroll's suggestions f i t s under the Uhden r u l e . 

I f a party's i d e n t i t y and whereabouts are known or could be 

ascertained with due diligence — i f I t o l d you I had 
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undisclosed partners and I'm not going t o t e l l you who they 

are, and the undisclosed partners — we're r e a l l y t a l k i n g 

about investors, because that's the term th a t a l l these o i l 

and gas guys use — don't have t h e i r i n t e r e s t s recorded, 

and I as an applicant can't f i g u r e out who you are, you're 

stuck, you don't deserve notice, because you couldn't have 

been found, you weren't known or you could not have been 

ascertained through due diligence. 

But that that's not what happened i n t h i s 

p a r t i c u l a r case. I mean, the want — You can come up with 

a l l kinds of scenarios about tha t . 

This l e t t e r l i s t i n g the i n t e r e s t owner, t h e i r 

address and t h e i r leasehold percentage ownership over here, 

t h i s i s Exhibit 24, t h i s i s the one, when you look at t h i s , 

y o u ' l l come t o , was given t o M i t c h e l l . This i s what they 

had. I t wasn't undisclosed. This i s disclosure i f you ask 

me, not nondisclosure. 

So i f they're not disclosed and you don't have 

your int e r e s t s recorded, then you have an i n t e r e s t at your 

p e r i l . 

I mean, you're going t o have — I f Mr. Murphy 

hadn't have sent t h i s l e t t e r , f o r instance, t o M i t c h e l l , 

then other than the fact that M i t c h e l l had the duty t o use 

due diligence, which they never did — I mean, that's 

c e r t a i n l y an argument. But i f t h i s hadn't been sent t o 
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them, we probably wouldn't be here today, because t h i s i s 

the n o t i c e t h a t they got and t h i s i s the knowledge they 

had. To suggest they d i d n ' t know where t o f i n d them i s 

j u s t not r i g h t . Y o u ' l l see t h a t when you look a t the 

e x h i b i t . 

So t h a t ' s a l l I wanted t o say. 

CHAIRMAN LEMAY: I'm s o r r y , Mr. C a r r o l l , do you 

want t o say something? 

MR. CARROLL: Mr. Chairman, I might i n t e r j e c t . 

There's a l o t of agency issues i n t h i s case. We d i d n ' t 

hear the testimony of these undisclosed p a r t n e r s . We do 

know t h a t S t r a t a represented t h a t i t could s e l l t he lease 

on behalf of the partners and t h a t i t would represent i t s 

p a r t n e r s ' r i g h t s i n any f o r c e - p o o l i n g proceeding. So — 

I'm j u s t saying maybe there's some agency or p a r t n e r s h i p 

issues t h a t are b e t t e r decided by a co u r t more f a m i l i a r 

w i t h such issues. 

CHAIRMAN LEMAY: Okay. 

MR. CARROLL: And t o comment on Mr. S t r a t t o n ' s 

l a s t — h o l d i n g up the l e t t e r , S t r a t a always took the 

p o s i t i o n t h a t i t had no duty t o inform i t s p a r t n e r s . I 

guess the duty was t o M i t c h e l l i n t h i s case, t o d i s c l o s e 

t h e p a r t n e r s . 

This i s g e t t i n g very e s o t e r i c l e g a l t h e o r y , but 

who i s the duty owed to? I t seemed l i k e S t r a t a had a duty 
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to protect i t s partners by submitting t h i s l i s t of partners 

t o M i t c h e l l but had no duty t o then inform i t s partners 

tha t there's a force-pooling proceeding. 

And then — To begin with, Mr. Stratton said, you 

know, once these partners became aware of the order and of 

the w e l l , they came forward. Well, i t was Strata t h a t 

somehow had a duty arise t o inform these partners of the 

proceeding. For a long time they said no duty t o inform 

t h e i r partners. But then l a t e r they somehow had a duty t o 

inform them they had a r i g h t against M i t c h e l l . 

And i t ' s — the agency issues are confusing and 

where the duties l i e . I f Mr. Stratton can answer those... 

MR. STRATTON: Mr. Chairman, I didn't say t h a t . 

I didn't say that once they became aware, they came 

forward. So I have a hard time answering th a t since I 

didn't say that . 

MR. CARROLL: Well, the t r a n s c r i p t w i l l say that,, 

MR. STRATTON: I don't see — To me that's not an 

issue. I mean, we know when they became aware, because Mr,. 

Ca r r o l l asked us to get a f f i d a v i t s from them, which we did, 

th a t indicated when each ind i v i d u a l became aware of the 

we l l and when the proceedings occurred. 

And those a f f i d a v i t s are i n the record at — 

They're our l a s t set of a f f i d a v i t s . I don't know, they're 

the l a s t 16 exhibits . 
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But why that i s important I don't know, 

because — 

CHAIRMAN LEMAY: Okay, I guess we can dig tha t 

out of the record, what that says. I t sounds l i k e an open 

issue. 

Are you ready to take some questions from the 

Commissioners? I'd l i k e t o include Lyn Hebert i n the 

question-and-answer, and she can — Since t h i s i s a l o t of 

legal issues, i f you have a question, Lyn, I would 

appreciate, on the legal side, you asking them f o r 

c l a r i f i c a t i o n . 

Start with Commissioner Weiss. 

COMMISSIONER WEISS: Yeah, I don't hear any 

issues here about c o r r e l a t i v e r i g h t s or waste. I th i n k we 

need t o form a committee of law professors, i s what I 

thin k , and study t h i s sucker. 

CHAIRMAN LEMAY: There are some heavy le g a l 

issues involved. I — 

COMMISSIONER WEISS: I mean, t h i s i s . . . 

CHAIRMAN LEMAY: Commissioner Bailey, w i t h your 

law hat on, do you — 

COMMISSIONER BAILEY: Did Strata receive any 

disbursements from M i t c h e l l or any b i l l i n g s concerning t h i s 

well? 

MR. KELLAHIN: Yes, ma'am. 
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COMMISSIONER BAILEY: On behalf of i t s partners? 

MR. KELLAHIN: Yeah, I can't c h a r a c t e r i z e i t on 

behalf of t h e i r p a r t n e r s , but as i n f o r m a t i o n i s d i s t r i b u t e d 

i t went t o S t r a t a , even a f t e r the — We had th e f o r c e -

p o o l i n g a p p l i c a t i o n and the n o t i c e , and then they gave us 

the l i s t . But a l l the i n f o r m a t i o n has been sent t o S t r a t a . 

COMMISSIONER BAILEY: And were t h e r e any moneys 

p a i d t o Strata? 

MR. KELLAHIN: No, ma'am, because we are s t i l l 

t r y i n g t o recover the penalty component of th e Order. And 

we have recovered the costs of t h e i r share one time , and 

we're moving towards the two-time number, and so we haven't 

got t o 300 y e t . 

COMMISSIONER BAILEY: That's a l l I have. 

CHAIRMAN LEMAY: I guess I had a couple questions 

about the s t r u c t u r e of the p a r t n e r s h i p arrangement. These 

have been chara c t e r i z e d as S t r a t a p a r t n e r s . Now, these 

S t r a t a p a r t n e r s , I take i t , are your c l i e n t s , Mr. S t r a t t o n ? 

MR. STRATTON: I wouldn't c h a r a c t e r i z e them as 

S t r a t a p a r t n e r s — 

CHAIRMAN LEMAY: Okay. 

MR. STRATTON: — Mr. Chairman, but — 

CHAIRMAN LEMAY: Well, how would you c h a r a c t e r i z e 

them, then? 

MR. STRATTON: Working i n t e r e s t owners and 
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o v e r r i d i n g r o y a l t y i n t e r e s t owners. 

CHAIRMAN LEMAY: Okay. 

MR. STRATTON: I t h i n k , Mr. Chairman — 

CHAIRMAN LEMAY: I s the r e a r e l a t i o n s h i p between 

these working i n t e r e s t owners and Strata? 

MR. STRATTON: They know each other. But do you 

mean i s th e r e a l e g a l r e l a t i o n s h i p between them — 

CHAIRMAN LEMAY: Both. 

MR. STRATTON: — l i k e a p a r t n e r s h i p or — 

CHAIRMAN LEMAY: Okay, both. 

MR. STRATTON: No. 

CHAIRMAN LEMAY: No l e g a l r e l a t i o n s h i p — 

MR. STRATTON: No. 

CHAIRMAN LEMAY: ~ i t ' s not a l i m i t e d 

p a r t n e r s h i p — 

MR. STRATTON: No. 

CHAIRMAN LEMAY: — i t ' s not a — There's no 

corporate i d e n t i t y t h e r e , so they are working i n t e r e s t 

partners? 

MR. STRATTON: Some are i n d i v i d u a l s , some are 

co r p o r a t i o n s , some are — you know, a l l kinds of d i f f e r e n t 

f o l k s . But the r e i s no l e g a l r e l a t i o n s h i p , whether i t ' s 

corporate, l i m i t e d l i a b i l i t y company, l i m i t e d p a r t n e r s h i p 

or p a r t n e r s h i p , between these i n d i v i d u a l s . 

I f i n d t h a t o i l men and o i l people use t h e word 
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"partner" as "investor", and — these are partners, they're 

our partners i n t h i s w e l l . They don't mean they have a 

partnership — 

CHAIRMAN LEMAY: Okay. 

MR. STRATTON: — under New Mexico law; they mean 

they're investing i n t h i s w e l l . 

CHAIRMAN LEMAY: But they're partners i n a lease, 

then; wouldn't they be that? Or co-owners i n the lease? 

MR. STRATTON: No. 

CHAIRMAN LEMAY: How do they get t h e i r i n t e r e s t 

i n t h i s 25 percent that became part of the pr o r a t i o n unit? 

MR. STRATTON: They go purchase an i n t e r e s t , and 

then they get a percentage i n t e r e s t , l i k e a 1-percent 

i n t e r e s t , working i n t e r e s t , i n the lease. 

CHAIRMAN LEMAY: And who do they purchase t h a t 

from? 

MR. STRATTON: These — Our c l i e n t s purchased i t 

from Strata — 

CHAIRMAN LEMAY: Okay. 

MR. STRATTON: — i n 1989 and 1990. 

CHAIRMAN LEMAY: Okay. Why didn't they receive 

an assignment, then? 

MR. STRATTON: You know, I don't know the answer 

to t h a t , Mr. Chairman. You mean a w r i t t e n assignment? 

CHAIRMAN LEMAY: Well, something t o show they 
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transaction, r e a l estate transaction, there's usually some 

paper that's signed designating the i n t e r e s t i f you pay 

money. 

MR. STRATTON: They may have some of what you're 

t a l k i n g about. I mean, not necessarily an assignment th a t 

occurred p r i o r to t h i s time. 

But I f i n d that that i s n ' t always the case i n the 

o i l and gas industry. I see a l o t of these deals where 

people are using — where people don't have t h a t r i g h t 

away, and they don't assign the i n t e r e s t r i g h t away. And I 

— I mean, I see a l o t of i t ; I'm surprised you a l l don't 

see i t a l o t . 

Maybe by the time i t gets here, we're at t h i s 

s i t u a t i o n and a l o t of water has gone under the bridge. 

But when — I c e r t a i n l y know the deals I've been involved 

i n and that my c l i e n t s have been involved i n , t h a t t h a t 

doesn't always happen r i g h t away. 

CHAIRMAN LEMAY: Would you characterize these 

people, these investors, as knowledgeable o i l people? 

MR. STRATTON: Some of them c e r t a i n l y are, yes, 

s i r , absolutely. Some of them are o i l companies. 

CHAIRMAN LEMAY: So they p r e t t y w e l l know what's 

going on i n the patch and how things are done and — 

MR. STRATTON: Some of them — most — I would 
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say most of them do. I would say most of them do. I'm not 

t e s t i f y i n g here; I'm giving you my opinion. 

CHAIRMAN LEMAY: Well, yeah, I'm t r y i n g t o — 

We're t r y i n g t o characterize — 

MR. STRATTON: Right, I understand. 

CHAIRMAN LEMAY: — these partners, the 

rel a t i o n s h i p between Strata and the investors, working 

i n t e r e s t owners, partners, whatever. And that 

r e l a t i o n s h i p , I think, i s important t o t h i s Commission's 

deliberations. What constitutes a re l a t i o n s h i p — What 

constitutes these relationships? They can be confusing, i t 

sounds l i k e . 

MR. STRATTON: Well, the one thin g I would say, 

Mr. Chairman, i s , the reason Uhden and other cases i n New 

Mexico have t h i s f a i r l y s t r i c t Constitutional notice 

requirement i s so that you don't have t o do t h a t . You a l l 

have been very patient s i t t i n g here today, l i s t e n i n g t o our 

esoteric legal arguments, and I know they're very 

d i f f i c u l t , and they're very d i f f i c u l t f o r the best of 

lawyers. 

But what solves a l l of t h i s i s t o make sure you 

have them here. I mean, what i f , f o r instance, they had 

n o t i f i e d them and then somebody decided they didn't have 

to? I mean, that wouldn't have been the worst t h i n g t o 

happen i n the world. 
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But the idea to t r y to get around n o t i f y i n g 

somebody i s what puts us i n these s i t u a t i o n s , where we're 

going to have to do that. 

So my suggestion to you i s , i t almost doesn't 

matter how you characterize t h e i r i n t e r e s t . You can 

characterize i t any way you want, but the f a c t i s , they do 

have a protected property r i g h t , because they had purchased 

t h i s i n t e r e s t back i n 1989 and 1990. 

And so they're e n t i t l e d t o notice, i f somebody 

knows about t h e i r i n t e r e s t , only i f they know about t h e i r 

i n t e r e s t . I w i l l s t i p u l a t e r i g h t here on the record th a t 

i f i t had never come to Mitchell's a t t e n t i o n and M i t c h e l l 

had used some — i f they had gone through the phone 

dire c t o r y i n Artesia, to use Mr. Carroll's example, and 

couldn't f i n d the in t e r e s t s , then a l l of my c l i e n t s are out 

of luck, because they're not recorded. 

CHAIRMAN LEMAY: My question s t i l l i s , what 

constitutes the interest? Strata saying they have i n t e r e s t 

or — Normally i n t e r e s t becomes a definable i n t e r e s t when 

there's some document there to say they have an i n t e r e s t , 

because we can characterize a l o t of things d i f f e r e n t ways, 

but without some kind of documentation — I guess they 

should have taken the word of Strata on t h a t , t h a t they had 

in t e r e s t , because Strata t o l d them they had interest? 

MR. STRATTON: They wouldn't be here today i f 
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they had done tha t . They could have served them, and they 

would have found they had int e r e s t s , and everything would 

have been l i t i g a t e d . 

So the answer i n that p a r t i c u l a r case — I 

wouldn't say they should have taken t h e i r word. They 

should have taken the l e t t e r , and somebody should have 

cal l e d up Branko, or somebody should have ca l l e d up Duane 

Brown, or somebody should have called up Chuck Wellborn and 

said, Now, we're informed you have an i n t e r e s t i n t h i s 

p a r t i c u l a r lease; i s that true? They have a duty t o use 

due diligence t o ascertain t h i s . 

Strikes me, i f they didn't believe Strata, which 

ac t u a l l y turned out to be true — i t would have been 

somebody they could have believed — but i f they didn't 

believe them, pick up the telephone and c a l l them. And i f 

th a t i n d i v i d u a l , i f Mr. Brown, had said, No, I don't have 

an i n t e r e s t i n t h a t . . . 

But i f he says, I do have an i n t e r e s t i n t h a t , 

then they've used t h e i r due diligence t o ascertain what 

int e r e s t s there were. 

But none of that was done. There was no attempt 

to do th a t . 

CHAIRMAN LEMAY: A l l r i g h t , that helps c l a r i f y . 

Did you have any questions, Lyn, concerning some of the 

l e g a l i t i e s ? 
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MS. HEBERT: Well, I d i d have a que s t i o n , Mr. 

K e l l a h i n . You i n d i c a t e d t h a t you thought the date should 

be the date the p a r t y i s served. But w i t h more than one 

p a r t y — So t h a t would be a d i f f e r e n t date f o r every p a r t y 

p r i o r t o c u t o f f date, as opposed t o having t h e date of the 

known i n t e r e s t owners be the date the a p p l i c a t i o n i s f i l e d 

w i t h the Commission? 

MR. KELLAHIN: I under — Yes. 

MS. HEBERT: You've got a s o r t of moving t a r g e t , 

i t seems. 

MR. KELLAHIN: Yeah, i t i s a moving t a r g e t , and 

i t ' s bothered me, and I've thought about how convenient i t 

would be f o r the agency and f o r the a p p l i c a n t t o say the 

t a r g e t i s f i x e d when we f i l e the a p p l i c a t i o n . 

But i f the a p p l i c a t i o n i s f i l e d and each of the 

p a r t i e s t o be pooled does not y e t know t h a t ' s happened, 

maybe i t ' s f a i r t h a t the t a r g e t f l o a t s , so t h a t by the time 

you come t o the hearing you can f i x t h a t i n d i v i d u a l 1 s 

involvement i n the process w i t h the date they s i g n the 

green card. And you're going t o have d i f f e r e n t dates based 

upon s e r v i c e , but I t h i n k t h a t ' s f a i r . 

I don't t h i n k i t would be f a i r t o f i l e a p o o l i n g 

a p p l i c a t i o n , serve Santa Fe Energy, get around t o s e r v i n g 

B u r l i n g t o n a few days l a t e r , and f i n d t h a t B u r l i n g t o n says, 

Hey, w a i t a minute, my i n t e r e s t has already been assigned 
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of record. And I think maybe we need t o deal w i t h the 

f l o a t i n g concept of actual service u n t i l we have a better 

sense of how cumbersome that might be. 

MS. HEBERT: Well, t o some extent i t seems l i k e 

the reason th a t the Division keeps a l l the voluminous 

records i t keeps i s because i t becomes something of — not 

l i k e the county records, of course, but i t becomes a source 

of notice f o r where things — or f o r when things occurred 

th a t a f f e c t the property in t e r e s t s . 

So i t j u s t occurred t o me that the f i l i n g of the 

application would be of notice t o people i n the o i l and gas 

industry. I f they knew that that was the case, they would 

check the dockets. And they do check the dockets. I mean, 

I believe they do. 

MR. KELLAHIN: And that's a decision f o r you t o 

make. I'm not debating one or the other. And I thi n k 

there's a range of choice i n there that's reasonable i n any 

extent. 

But i t ' s troublesome to have investors f o r an 

opponent and not receive documentation as t o t h e i r property 

i n t e r e s t . And to equate the fa c t they may have sent a 

check t o Strata with having that property i n t e r e s t vested 

at t h a t point i n time, I think, f i x e s the property i n t e r e s t 

too soon. 

MS. HEBERT: Well, I also had a question f o r Mr. 
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S t r a t t o n . 

You s a i d t h a t t h e i r working i n t e r e s t , t h e i r 

ownership i n t e r e s t s , those weren't i n w r i t i n g u n t i l 1995? 

MR. STRATTON: I d i d n ' t say t h a t . That's what 

Mr. K e l l a h i n s a i d . I t h i n k — 

MS. HEBERT: Well, I t h i n k Mr. LeMay d i d ask i f 

they had any w r i t t e n documentation. 

MR. STRATTON: Oh, okay, of recor d i n t h i s 

p a r t i c u l a r case. The only t h i n g t h a t I know o f — Are the 

assignments i n the record? 

MR. KELLAHIN: Yes. 

MR. STRATTON: Okay. — are the assignments t h a t 

d i d take place i n — whenever the date was. I f i t was 

1995, i t was 1995. 

MS. HEBERT: Are you aware of any of your 16 

c l i e n t s had any k i n d of l i m i t e d p a r t n e r s h i p or other 

p a r t n e r s h i p agreement w i t h S t r a t a p r i o r t o t h a t ? 

MR. STRATTON: I'm aware t h a t they don't. 

MS. HEBERT: They don't? 

MR. STRATTON: No. 

MS. HEBERT: There was noth i n g i n — 

MR. STRATTON: There's no evidence i n t h e r e c o r d 

t h a t they do, and I'm t e l l i n g you as an o f f i c e r of the 

Commission, or whatever you c a l l people here, t h a t they 

don't have any such r e l a t i o n s h i p , c e r t a i n l y not i n regard 
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t o t h i s , but no other relationship l i k e t h a t . 

CHAIRMAN LEMAY: Mr. Carroll? 

MR. CARROLL: Let me bring up another issue that 

hasn't been touched on, and that i s actual notice and 

whether actual notice can cure any absence of 

Constitutional or statutory notice. 

At the hearing i n 1993, a George Scott t e s t i f i e d 

as the consulting geologist f o r Strata. There's a number 

of Scott i n t e r e s t s , but Mr. Scott t e s t i f i e d at th a t hearing 

t h a t he was the owner of Scott Exploration, and Scott 

Exploration i s one of these undisclosed partners. 

Now, the owner of one of these partners was at 

the hearing and did not enter an appearance as a partner. 

He was a consulting geologist. So f o r sure, at least Scott 

Exploration had notice of the hearing. And I notice one of 

the a f f i d a v i t s i s signed by a geologist with Scott 

Exploration, and they said they had notice back i n 1993. 

I was wondering i f Mr. Stratton could address 

whether actual notice could substitute f o r lack of 

statuto r y notice, because I found a couple cases i n 

Oklahoma where an Oklahoma court said i n a compulsory 

pooling case — i n two cases — that parties cannot, you 

know, even i f they haven't received statutory notice, can't 

stand by and wait to see whether the w e l l i s good and then 

elect t o j o i n i n a f t e r the f a c t . 
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MR. STRATTON: Mr. Chairman, I'd be pleased t o 

address that — 

CHAIRMAN LEMAY: Okay. 

MR. STRATTON: — i f you would l i k e me t o . 

F i r s t of a l l , I regret I can't — Being from 

Oklahoma, I'd l i k e to agree that that i s what they d i d , but 

i t ' s not. The United States Supreme Court, however, did 

address the issue i n 1915, c i t e d i n our b r i e f , Coe vs . 

Armor F e r t i l i z e r Works, a 1915 case. 

And the United States Supreme Court held t h a t 

e x t r a - o f f i c i a l or casual notice f o r a hearing granted as a 

favor of dis c r e t i o n i n proceedings f o r taking one's 

property — that means, i f you messed up and you j u s t 

granted them a new hearing — i s not a substantial 

substitute f o r the due process of law, which the 14th 

Amendment of the US Constitution requires. The notice must 

be formal and provided w i t h i n the context of the 

proceedings. 

So what we're saying i s , i f I'm i n the barber 

shop and my barber says, You know, Mr. C a r r o l l was i n here 

the other day and he says that there's a hearing going on 

over there at the Commission and i t ' s going t o a f f e c t a 

whole gunny sack f u l l of your o i l and gas i n t e r e s t s , that's 

not good enough, because you have t o have personal service 

under Uhden. The US Supreme Court says casual or extra-
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o f f i c i a l notice i s not good enough. So... 

CHAIRMAN LEMAY: But that's j u s t a — I'm not 

sure we're t a l k i n g about the same thing. I understood i t 

t o say that i t wasn't casual, but actually one of the 

witnesses at the hearing was also one of the partners? 

MR. CARROLL: That's correct. 

CHAIRMAN LEMAY: So i t ' s — 

MR. STRATTON: I think that's not correct. 

CHAIRMAN LEMAY: — casual notice of the — 

MR. STRATTON: I don't think Mr. Scott a c t u a l l y 

i s one of the i n t e r e s t owners. 

MR. CARROLL: He t e s t i f i e d he owned Scott 

Exploration. Scott Exploration i s one of the partners. 

MR. STRATTON: I'd have t o check t h a t , but I'm 

not sure th a t that i s correct. 

CHAIRMAN LEMAY: Okay, but the f a c t t h a t i f 

they're there and i t ' s obvious or would appear obvious t o 

us th a t they knew about i t there, then — and they were a 

partner, t h a t wouldn't be constructive notice? Or — 

MR. STRATTON: Constructive notice — 

CHAIRMAN LEMAY: — we would assume tha t he 

didn't know, even though he knew? 

MR. STRATTON: Constructive notice doesn't work. 

CHAIRMAN LEMAY: I don't know what I'm t a l k i n g 

about, saying "constructive notice". I mean, I pulled 
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" c o n s t r u c t i v e " out of the a i r . I mean, i f he knows, he 

knows, doesn't he? Or not? 

MR. STRATTON: I'm going t o say, I don't have a 

case on t h a t , and I don't t h i n k t h e r e i s a case on t h a t , 

because I don't t h i n k t h a t happens very o f t e n . But I'm not 

going t o concede i t , because I haven't looked — That's one 

out of 16 people, so — 

CHAIRMAN LEMAY: Well, what's the r e l a t i o n s h i p of 

these people? Are they i n t e r r e l a t e d , are they b r o t h e r - i n ­

laws or — 

MR. STRATTON: Well, I don't know. 

CHAIRMAN LEMAY: — or neighbors, or do they a l l 

l i v e i n one town, or are they s c a t t e r e d throughout t h e 

country, or — 

MR. STRATTON: They're s c a t t e r e d . We have 

somebody i n S a l t Lake C i t y , we've got somebody i n Canada, 

we've got some people i n Roswell. Some of then know each 

other, some of them are r e l a t e d . 

But I ' l l t e l l you what you have. I mean, i f 

t h a t ' s a serious concern, i f you don't b e l i e v e t h e US 

Supreme Court and you don't want t o look a t Uhden, go look 

a t t h e i r a f f i d a v i t s . They have f i l e d , under t h e — 

CHAIRMAN LEMAY: We'll look a t those, because I 

t h i n k — 

MR. STRATTON: — they have f i l e d , under the 
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p e n a l t y of p e r j u r y , a f f i d a v i t s saying they d i d n ' t know 

about the hearing. Now, i f Mr. C a r r o l l can come prove t h a t 

they d i d , then he can go over and see the US At t o r n e y or 

the d i s t r i c t a t t o r n e y and t a l k t o him about i t . 

But once again, I want — When you're doing t h i s 

and when Mr. C a r r o l l says, I don't know what i s 

C o n s t i t u t i o n a l n o t i c e , t h a t r e a l l y concerns me as a 

l i t i g a n t here. 

But please, when you do t h i s , make sure — And 

when you decide what a c u t o f f date i s — t h i s q u e s tion 

wasn't asked f o r me — please t r y t o make sure you do i t i n 

accordance w i t h what the courts say and not j u s t what i s 

convenient f o r an a p p l i c a n t . Because t h a t , when i t gets t o 

c o u r t , l i k e i n Uhden — I mean, t h a t ' s what t h e y ' r e going 

t o look a t . They're not going t o look a t what's convenient 

f o r Mr. K e l l a h i n ' s c l i e n t s . They're going t o look a t what 

they t h i n k the C o n s t i t u t i o n r e q u i r e s , even i f i t ' s a l i t t l e 

b i t burdensome, l i k e personal s e r v i c e . 

MR. KELLAHIN: One fo o t n o t e t o t h a t , i f I might. 

CHAIRMAN LEMAY: Well, I was going t o say 

f i r s t — 

MR. KELLAHIN: Yeah. 

CHAIRMAN LEMAY: — because he was — and then 

you. 

Go ahead, Rand. 
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MR. CARROLL: Yeah, th e r e was some r e c o l l e c t i o n s 

t h a t some of the partners showed up a t the hearing, besides 

j u s t being a witness there. I n f a c t , some of the p a r t n e r s 

may be i n the audience here — i t appears so — 

CHAIRMAN LEMAY: Uh-huh. 

CHAIRMAN LEMAY: — and maybe they can be put on 

the stand. 

MR. STRATTON: Well, I'm not c a l l i n g them t o the 

stand, Mr. Chairman. 

CHAIRMAN LEMAY: Mr. Kell a h i n ? 

MR. KELLAHIN: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 

I would r e f e r Ms. Hebert t o page 18 of my b r i e f . 

There are some Oklahoma cases t h a t we have found. I t h i n k 

t h i s one i s i n t e r e s t i n g . I t helped me work my way through 

i t . 

And i t simply says, The Supreme Court of Oklahoma 

h e l d i n Chance l lor — t a l k i n g about a 1982 case — t h a t the 

n o t i c e requirements were not intended t o compel th e u n i t 

operator t o check county records from the date of t h e 

A p p l i c a t i o n u n t i l the Commission order t o assure t h a t a l l 

i n t e r e s t owners had been n o t i f i e d . Such a r u l i n g , t he 

co u r t noted, would permit an adverse p a r t y t o defeat an 

a p p l i c a t i o n by simply t r a n s f e r r i n g ownership a f t e r t h e 

hearing. 

What we're contending here i s t h a t we had n o t i c e 
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of these people only a f t e r the application was f i l e d . 

Their i n t e r e s t i s not even of record. 

The point i n time t o f i x i s the date we f i l e d the 

application and served Mr. Murphy. And i f you adopt that 

date, I think that fixes the problem, because t h e i r 

property i n t e r e s t does not occur and i s not known t o us 

u n t i l a f t e r that date. 

MR. STRATTON: Mr. Chairman, can I go back t o 

your other point, because you — I mean, i t ' s an 

in t e r e s t i n g point, and I'm thinking about i t . 

You know, i f I was i n a lawsuit and there were 

four or f i v e people that should have been served and I 

didn't get served, f o r instance, and I show up and watch 

the t r i a l , I'm not bound by what they do there. Nobody 

ever got personal service. 

I f somebody c a l l s me to the witness stand and I 

t e s t i f y , I'm not bound by what occurred at the proceeding, 

because the court doesn't have j u r i s d i c t i o n over me. 

And i t works the same way here, t h a t unless you 

obtain j u r i s d i c t i o n — and that's probably a better way to 

thi n k about i t and look at i t — over the i n d i v i d u a l , they 

can come f r o l i c around a l l they want, l i s t e n t o the 

hearing, do whatever they want; but you don't have 

j u r i s d i c t i o n over them to a f f e c t t h e i r r i g h t s . 

So i n thinking — I mean, i t ' s an easy answer i n 
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a j u d i c i a l context. I know we tend t o t h i n k about 

a d m i n i s t r a t i v e proceedings as being more i n f o r m a l and 

having d i f f e r e n t r u l e s . But when i t b o i l s down t o 

C o n s t i t u t i o n a l c onsiderations, t e c h n i c a l l y we don't here. 

So I guess i n t h i n k i n g about t h a t , I ' d answer 

t h a t i t d i d n ' t matter who was here i f they hadn't been 

served a p p r o p r i a t e l y under the Uhden standard. 

MR. CARROLL: Mr. Chairman, one more note. 

I t ' s my r e c o l l e c t i o n t h a t you don't represent a l l 

the undisclosed partners? There's a couple t h a t d i d not 

j o i n i n t h i s action? 

MR. STRATTON: I don't subscribe t o t h e 

undisclosed p a r t n e r theory, so I don't know who you mean, 

Mr. C a r r o l l , when you say t h a t . 

MR. KELLAHIN: I t ' s Warren and Arrowhead. 

MR. CARROLL: Do you represent a l l t h e p a r t n e r s 

or t h e working i n t e r e s t owners besides S t r a t a i n t h i s ? 

MR. STRATTON: No, I don't. 

MR. CARROLL: Who don't you represent? 

MR. STRATTON: Well, maybe I should t e l l you who 

I do represent, and then you can determine f o r y o u r s e l f — 

MR. CARROLL: I s i t Warren and Arrowhead? 

MR. STRATTON: — because I don't know who a l l 

the working i n t e r e s t — 

MR. CARROLL: Warren and Arrowhead t h a t — 
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MR. STRATTON: I don't know who a l l the working 

i n t e r e s t owners are. I don't represent Warren and I don't 

represent Arrowhead. They're not parties t o t h i s 

proceeding. 

MR. CARROLL: Do you know why? 

MR. STRATTON: I don't. And I would say once 

again, Mr. C a r r o l l , I can't think of anything more 

i r r e l e v a n t as to why they're not here. Just because 

they're not here doesn't mean that the Commission can 

v i o l a t e the Constitutional r i g h t s of the people t h a t are 

here. 

CHAIRMAN LEMAY: So Branko i s who? I s t h a t — I s 

one of the investors, i s that who Branko is? 

MR. STRATTON: Yes, Branko, Inc. 

CHAIRMAN LEMAY: I s i t a corporation? 

MR. STRATTON: Branko, Inc. 

CHAIRMAN LEMAY: Is i t a corporation? 

MR. STRATTON: Uh-huh. 

CHAIRMAN LEMAY: And you're representing them? 

MR. STRATTON: Correct, yes. 

CHAIRMAN LEMAY: Okay. 

MR. STRATTON: Do you want a rundown who I'm 

representing? 

CHAIRMAN LEMAY: That would help, probably. 

MR. STRATTON: I t ' s l i s t e d — Well, i t ' s l i s t e d 
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i n the motion — 

CHAIRMAN LEMAY: Okay. 

MR. STRATTON: — but I can run down i t . 

Branko, I n c . ; Duane Brown; S.H. Cavin — t h a t ' s 

not my law part n e r — Robert Eaton; Terry Kramer; Landwest, 

which i s a general p a r t n e r s h i p out of Utah; Candace 

McClelland; Permian Hunter Corporation; Scott E x p l o r a t i o n , 

I n c . — and I be l i e v e t h a t the a c t u a l owner o f t h a t i s 

Charles Warren Scott and not the Mr. Scott t h a t Mr. C a r r o l l 

i s t a l k i n g about — Chuck Wellborn; Winn Investment, I n c . ; 

L o r i W o r r a l l ; Xion Investments; George Scott, I I I — who i s 

also not the Mr. Scott t h a t Mr. C a r r o l l was t a l k i n g about 

— Stephen M i t c h e l l ; and Scott E x p l o r a t i o n , I n c . 

CHAIRMAN LEMAY: Okay, probably helps. A l o t of 

t h i s i n f o r m a t i o n , I'm sure, i s i n t h e r e , but — 

MR. STRATTON: And you haven't seen i t and i t ' s 

unusual. And we appreciate your patience. We hope the 

Commission doesn't mind us. We could have taken two days 

t o do t h i s . We hope t h i s i s b e t t e r ; I don't know. 

CHAIRMAN LEMAY: Okay, any more questions? Do 

you have anything? 

Are you going t o make a motion t o i n c o r p o r a t e t he 

record of the previous hearing i n t o our recor d and we work 

w i t h t h a t , plus what you've supplied us today? 

MR. KELLAHIN: I f we have not already 
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accomplished t h a t , Mr. Chairman, we, I t h i n k , j o i n t l y so 

move. 

CHAIRMAN LEMAY: Any obje c t i o n ? 

I f no o b j e c t i o n , then the record o f t h e previous 

hearing w i l l be introduced i n t o t h i s r e c o r d , and — 

MR. KELLAHIN: There's two hearings, Mr. 

Chairman. 

CHAIRMAN LEMAY: Or both hearings. And you want, 

t o i n t r o d u c e the record of both those previous hearings? 

We're t a l k i n g about the f o r c e - p o o l i n g hearing i n i t i a l l y — 

MR. KELLAHIN: Right. 

CHAIRMAN LEMAY: — back i n 1993 or — 

MR. KELLAHIN: Yes, s i r . 

CHAIRMAN LEMAY: — 1992 — 

MR. KELLAHIN: Yes, s i r . 

CHAIRMAN LEMAY: — plus the one we j u s t heard. 

Okay, wi t h o u t o b j e c t i o n , the recor d o f those 

hearings w i l l be entered i n t o t h i s record. 

Anyone else? 

MR. KELLAHIN: I ' d l i k e t o take a moment and 

intr o d u c e my guest. Bobby Hickman i s a petroleum engineer. 

Mr. Hickman i s responsible f o r t h i s p r o j e c t f o r M i t c h e l l 

Energy, and he's come from Houston today t o be t h e 

r e p r e s e n t a t i v e of my c l i e n t , and he's come a long way i n 

bad weather, and I ' d l i k e t o introduce him. 
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MR. HICKMAN: Thank you. How you doing? 

CHAIRMAN LEMAY: Welcome, Mr. Hickman. Sorry you 

didn't have more to say. 

MR. HICKMAN: Don't be. 

CHAIRMAN LEMAY: Usually people l i k e you are 

sworn i n , and we ask you questions. 

Does anybody else want to make a statement or... 

MR. CARROLL: I'd j u s t ask the Commission again 

whether they want to ask any questions of any partners t h a t 

are i n the audience. 

MS. HEBERT: I j u s t kind of think ~ I ' l l 

i n t e r r u p t . I think the understanding was, there wasn't 

going t o be any testimony i n t h i s hearing. I mean, th a t 

was the — 

MR. STRATTON: That was our s t i p u l a t i o n , Mr. 

Chairman. 

CHAIRMAN LEMAY: Sure. I mean, t h i s i s 

voluntary. I wasn't — you know, anyone wants t o — We can 

always ask f o r statements and things. I f there's anyone 

that wants t o say anything, they can do so and — i f that's 

the case. 

Do you a l l have anything you want t o add t o what 

you've t o l d us already? 

MR. STRATTON: Us, Mr. Chairman? 

CHAIRMAN LEMAY: Yes. 
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MR. STRATTON: Oh. 

CHAIRMAN LEMAY: I mean, I'm ready t o sum i t up 

and take the case under advisement unless you have anything 

else t o — 

MR. KELLAHIN: Mr. Chairman, I've w r i t t e n 28 

pages. I t ' s probably ten too many. I don't know what else 

t o t e l l you. 

CHAIRMAN LEMAY: I don't know what's i n those 28 

pages, Counselor. I t can't be that — 

MR. KELLAHIN: Oh, i t ' s good s t u f f , Mr. Chairman. 

MR. STRATTON: I've got some b r i e f s myself t h a t 

I've made copies of, Mr. Chairman. 

CHAIRMAN LEMAY: Okay. Sounds l i k e a very — a 

case laden with very heavy legal issues. And recognizing 

th a t I'm a geologist, that Commissioner Bailey i s a 

geologist, Commissioner Weiss i s an engineer, t h a t we — 

Fortunately, we have Lyn Hebert here as our Commission 

counsel. 

We'll c e r t a i n l y look at the legal issues. We 

have t o , as I understand t h i s case, the way i t ' s 

formulated. 

And I understand what you're t r y i n g t o say to us. 

I f I'm — Besides the case you're making f o r your c l i e n t s , 

you also would l i k e t o have some d i r e c t i o n from t h i s 

Commission as to what we consider a good p o l i c y f o r 
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n o t i f i c a t i o n would be, t h a t conforms w i t h t he Uhden 

d e c i s i o n , as i n t e r p r e t e d f o r us, I guess. I know these 

de c i s i o n s can have more than one i n t e r p r e t a t i o n , so... 

You're making a face there, Mr. Stratton, like 

there's no — there's only one interpretation of Uhden? 

MR. STRATTON: Well, on t h a t issue, you know, 

reading the r u l e s , you have a p r o v i s i o n f o r a c t u a l n o t i c e 

i n your r u l e s , and i t j u s t doesn't — i t j u s t doesn't 

comply w i t h Uhden, and i t ' s going t o be i n the f u t u r e 

unless t h a t gets taken care o f . 

I know I'm r i s k i n g u p s e t t i n g the Commission. I'm 

not meaning t o ; I'm t r y i n g t o be h e l p f u l . Unless t h a t gets 

taken care o f , then anybody who d i d n ' t r e c e i v e personal 

n o t i c e i s going t o be able t o come i n and do what we're 

doing here today. 

So I would suggest t o the Commission t h a t t h a t be 

looked a t and Ms. Hebert look a t i t — she's as capable as 

anyone t h a t I know of t o do t h a t — and t r y t o get t h a t — 

CHAIRMAN LEMAY: You understand she used t o work 

f o r you back i n the o l d days. 

MR. STRATTON: I have no comment f o r t h e record, 

Mr. Chairman. 

CHAIRMAN LEMAY: Sorry, I j u s t know your previous 

p o s i t i o n — 

MR. STRATTON: Thank you. 
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CHAIRMAN LEMAY: — and I know that's not an 

issue i n t h i s case. I wasn't saying t h a t because of th a t . 

I didn't mean to imply anything l i k e t h a t . 

But I do think there's some heavy issues involved 

here, and Uhden c e r t a i n l y has been an issue that's been 

with us f o r a long time. 

Does anyone else have anything f u r t h e r t o add i n 

Case Number 11,510? 

I f not, t h i s Commission w i l l take t h a t case under 

advisement. 

Thank you. 

Thereupon, these proceedings were concluded at 

4:40 p.m.) 

* * * 
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